
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

Thursday 7 April 2022 

 

Tel: 01993 861522 

e-mail - democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

LOWLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in the Council Chamber, Woodgreen, Witney OX28 1NB on Tuesday, 19 April 2022 at 2.00 pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 

To: Members of the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Ted Fenton (Chairman), Joy Aitman (Vice-Chair), Rosa Bolger, Maxine Crossland, 

Harry Eaglestone, Duncan Enright, Steve Good, Jeff Haine, Richard Langridge, Nick 

Leverton, Dan Levy, Lysette Nicholls, Carl Rylett and Ben Woodruff. 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2022. 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence  

To receive any apologies for absence.  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting. 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 7 - 76) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

Recommendation: 
That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 

Business Manager – Development Management. 

 

5.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions (Pages 77 - 84) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers and 

any appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

 

Page 2



WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber at 2.00 pm on Monday, 28 March 2022 

PRESENT 

Councillors:  Ted Fenton (Chairman), Joy Aitman (Vice-Chair), Maxine Crossland, Harry 

Eaglestone, Duncan Enright, Jeff Haine, Nick Leverton, Dan Levy, Michele Mead, Alex Postan, 

Carl Rylett, Harry St John and Ben Woodruff 

Officers:  Phil Shaw (Business Manager - Development Management), David Ditchett (Senior 

Planning Officer), Michelle Ouzman (Strategic Support Officer). 

52 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 February 2022 were approved and signed by the 

Chairman as a correct record. 

Members noted that the Planning officers had agreed to get back to Councillor Crossland 

regarding her question relating to the Delegated Decisions list from 28 February 2022. Item 4 

on Page 90 – “Councillor Crossland noted this had been withdrawn, and asked why this was. 

The Officer was unsure of the reason and agreed to look into the application and report 

back.” 

Officers confirmed that they would investigate and respond to Councillor Crossland directly. 

53 Apologies for Absence  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Bolger. Councillor Postan substituted 

for Councillor Good, Councillor Mead substituted for Councillor Nicholls and Councillor St 

John substituted for Councillor Langridge. 

54 Declarations of Interest  

A declarations of interest was received from Councillor Leverton who stated that he had put 
a call out for assistance regarding a charity pickup. A local business related to application 

21/03342/OUT replied and gave assistance with a free delivery. The Committee and Chair 

noted this statement, and it was agreed that it would not have an influence on this application. 

Councillor Crossland stated she may have a declaration of interest as her son-in-law owned 

one of the units in the industrial estate. The Chairman and Councillors noted Councillor 

Crossland’s interest, it was agreed that it would not have an influence on the application. 

55 Applications for Development  

21/03342/OUT - Land South West Of Downs Road, Curbridge Business Park, Witney. 

The Business Manager, Phil Shaw introduced the application for outline planning permission for 

a residential development comprising up to 75 dwellings, up to 40% affordable housing 

provision and public open space. (All matters reserved.) 

Councillor Crossland stated she may have a declaration of interest as her son-in-law owned 

one of the units mentioned by Mr Shaw in the industrial estate. The Chairman and Councillors 

noted Councillor Crossland’s interest, it was agreed that it would not have an influence on the 

application. 

Mr Nicholas Daruwalla spoke in support of the application. A copy of his statement is attached 

to the original copy of these minutes. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

28/March2022 

Mr Shaw continued with his presentation and summarised that the Planning Department had 

received 31 enquiries about the land and there was a strong interest locally, with existing 

businesses adjacent to the land. The officers’ recommendation was based in principle to policy 

and the Development Plan, which stated the importance to grow business in Witney. Mr Shaw 

also reminded Councillors that there was a noise barrier of over nine metres high within the 

application, which would be intrusive to the families within the proposed housing 

development. 

Councillor Woodruff stated that he had watched this site for several months, had recently 

visited with Councillor Haine, walked the route, and found access only via an existing housing 

estate. He advised that he would much prefer housing on the site. Councillor Woodruff felt 

that Councillors would benefit from a site visit, and suggested they defer the decision until 

Councillors had seen the land. 

Councillor Postan thought that the land would be better served with a local commercial 

business on site, as people could walk to work rather than travel. He also thought that the 

application proposal lacked sustainability details, and that housing built now would need to be 

brought up to sustainability standard in just a couple of years. 

Councillor Haine concurred that he had visited the site, and that he was aware land had 

already been purchased to create commercial access for local business’s at the adjacent depot., 

so they would not have to go via the housing estate for access. Mr Shaw concurred that land 

for new commercial access had been bought. 

Councillor Crossland noted that the District Local Plan had taken a lot of serious hard work 

to create, and that this application was asking Members to disregard their own policies. She 

felt that other potential uses for the land were irrelevant, the application clearly went against 

Council policy and therefore felt Members should support the officers’ recommendation and 

refuse the application. Councillor Leverton agreed, and added that the number of houses being 

developed would increase the daily traffic too, and he supported the officers recommendation. 

Councillor Woodruff, requested clarification of the adjacent land purchase for business access, 

whether the land had definitely been purchased, and felt that if the decision was deferred for a 

site visit, it would give extra time to seek clarification of the purchase. The Chairman referred 

Councillor Woodruff to page 53 in the original report. paragraph 2.1, point 4 which read: 

“ Referring to the third party ownership of the ransom strip bund, associates of our clients 

have now purchased the bund, enabling direct access” 

Councillor Woodruff proposed that the application be deferred for a site visit. Councillor 

Eaglestone seconded this proposal. 

On being put to the vote, the proposal was lost. 

Councillor Enright stated Witney was a vibrant town, and felt the Committee should support 

the officers recommendation and the Local Plan. Councillor Levy and Postan both agreed. 

Councillor Enright proposed that the application should be refused as per officers’ 

recommendation.  

Councillor Crossland seconded the proposal.  

On being put to the vote, the application was 

Refused 

 

 

Page 4



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

28/March2022 

21/01628/FUL - Church Farm, Church End, South Leigh, Witney 

The Senior Planning Officer, David Ditchett introduced the application for a change of use of 

land to allow the siting of three glamping wagons, together with the erection of a bike storage 

shed and the provision of four parking spaces (amended). 

A late submission from the Parish Council of South Leigh and High Cogges was received and 

was readout by the planning officer. The Parish Council reiterated that the proposal was 

contrary to the Neighbourhood Plan, particularly SLD6 and felt that the application should be 

refused.  Councillor Haine had also received a statement from the Parish Council of South 

Leigh and High Coggs (SLHCPC), the statement included a strong request to refuse the 

application on grounds that it goes against the Local Plan. Councillor Haine read out the 

statement and a copy is attached to the original minutes.  

Councillor Haine confirmed that he too thought the application does not comply with SLD6 

and Local Plan policies OS2 – Points 2,4,5 and 9, General Principle OS4 – Points 2 and 5, E2, 

EH2, EH8, Neighbourhood Local Plan policies SLE1, SLE7 and SLD6. 

Councillor Enright thought it was good to bring extra business to the farm and the proposal 

also had tourism opportunities for local communities, however, he was swayed by the 

statement from the Local Neighbourhood Plan 

Councillor St John stated that he had read through the South Leigh and Cogggs Parish 

Neighbourhood Plan and he thought it was a very good document. He went on to ask for 

clarification on the differences  between Use Classes B  and E. 

Mr Ditchett confirmed that B Class related to General Industrial, and Storage or distribution 

Whereas Use Class E was for Commercial, Business and Service. 

Both Councillors Levy and Postan thought the Committee should support the Parish 

Neighbourhood Plan. 

Councillor Haine proposed that the application be refused, contrary to officers 
recommendations, on policy grounds, because it was contrary to Policies, WODC Local Plan  

OS2 – Points 2,4,5 and 9, General Principle OS4 – Points 2 and 5, E2, EH2, EH8 and SLHC 

Neighbourhood Plan SLE1, SLE7 and SLD6. Councillor Leverton seconded the proposal. 

The proposal was put to the vote, and was carried. 

For the reasons stated above, the application was 

Refused 

 

21/02106/FUL - Church Farm, Church End, South Leigh, Witney  

 

The Senior Planning Officer, David Ditchett introduced the application for the construction of 

a pond for ecological enhancement and recreational purposes. Mr Ditchett advised that 

officers were recommending approval of the application. 

Councillor Haine commented on the depth of the pond and the safety issues this may have. 

This led to Councillors having a discussion on the safety aspect of the application. 

Councillor Haine proposed that the application be refused as there were safety concerns, this 

was seconded by Councillor Eaglestone. On being put to the vote, the proposal was lost. 

Councillor Postan proposed that the application be approved as per officers recommendation. 

This was seconded by Councillor Levy.  

Page 5



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

28/March2022 

The proposal was put to the vote, and was carried that the application be 

Approved 

 

21/02779/FUL - 61 High Street, Standlake  

The Senior Planning Officer, David Ditchett introduced the application for the demolition of 

an existing engineering workshop and the erection of two detached dwellings, with associated 

parking, private amenity space and landscaping. 

Mr Ditchett confirmed that the engineering workshop had ceased trading in 2019 and advised 

that Officers were recommending approval. 

Councillor Haine proposed to approve the application as per Officers recommendation and 

this was seconded by Councillor Leverton. 

It was therefore agreed that the application be 

Approved 

 

56 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions  

The report giving details of applications determined under delegated powers was received and 

noted.  

 

The Meeting closed at 3.30 pm 

 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 6



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

LOWLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 19th April 2022 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Strategic Director. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Item Application Number Address Officer 

 

 

21/01963/RES Clover Court, Bushey Drive, Clanfield, Bampton 

 

David Ditchett 

 

 

 

21/03643/FUL 46 Market Square, Witney 

 

Esther Hill 

 

 

 

21/03644/LBC 46 Market Square, Witney 

 

Esther Hill 

 

 

 

21/03720/FUL 44 Common Road, North Leigh 

 

David Ditchett 

 

  

Page 8



Application Number 21/01963/RES 

Site Address Clover Court 

Bushey Drive 

Clanfield 

Bampton 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 2TS 

 

Date 5th April 2022 

Officer David Ditchett 

Officer Recommendations Provisional Approval 

Parish Clanfield Parish Council 

Grid Reference 428369 E       201453 N 

Committee Date 19th April 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

Application Details: 

Reserved Matters application for four dwellings (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale), pursuant to 

outline permission 19/00115/OUT 

 

Page 9



Applicant Details: 

Mr Rob Stewart 

14 The Pines 

Faringdon 

SN7 8AU 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council  Clanfield Parish Council has considered the documents relating to 

the above and has the following comments for your consideration 

please.  

 

o Parking/Traffic along Main street  

 

The PC is currently in consultation with OCC Highways regarding 

the major problem of parking and traffic flow which have followed 

your earlier approval of a cafe (Blakes) and renovations to the 

Double Red Duke on the corner of Main Street/Pound lane with no 

adequate parking provision. This is a major problem for residents 

here.  

 

The number of vehicles that this development will feed onto Main 

Street will be 20+ and the development strategy openly advertises 

that there is plenty of room for more vehicles than those outlined 

on the visuals! Main Street, due to on road parking has become 

effectively a single track road with serious traffic flow problems. 

This development will further exacerbate this situation  

 

o The design of the proposed dwellings is not in keeping with the 

setting or nearby properties including listed buildings.  

o Drainage is of serious concern until Thames Water complete 

repair of all the leaks in the infrastructure here. Maybe WODC 

would address this with them? 

 

 

OCC Highways  The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact ( in terms of highway safety and convenience ) on the 

adjacent highway network  

 

Recommendation: Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local 

Highways Authority, hereby notify the District Planning Authority 

that they do not object to the granting of planning permission, 

subject to the following conditions:  

 

o G28 parking as plan  

o G25 drive etc specification  

o G35 SUDS sustainable surface water drainage details  

o G32 turning facility 

 

 

Page 10



WODC Drainage Engineers  No Comment Received. 

 

 

ERS Env. Consultation Sites  Thank you for consulting our team, I have looked at the application 

in relation to contaminated land and potential risk to human health. 

As for the outline permission, please consider adding the following 

condition to any grant of permission as a precaution.  

 

1. In the event that contamination is found at any time when 

carrying out the approved development, it must be reported in 

writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An 

investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance 

with the requirements of Environment Agency's Model Procedures 

for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11, and where 

remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, 

to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 

removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other 

property, and which is subject to the approval in writing of the 

Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of 

the amenity. 

Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and 

Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

 

District Ecologist  07/07/2021 

Thank you for consulting me on the above planning application 

(application no. 21/01963/RES). I have reviewed the details that have 

been submitted and have the following comments where additional 

information is required before a positive determination of the 

application.  

 

I understand that no ecology report had been submitted for the 

outline planning application (application no. 19/00115/OUT). 

However, without an ecological assessment of the site, the habitats 

on site and the potential for protected and priority species cannot 

be fully understood. The site has the potential to offer suitable 

shelter, foraging and commuting habitat (e.g. hedgerows, grassland 

and potential scrub habitat) for bats, birds, badgers, reptiles, 

amphibians, hedgehogs and dormice. The application site may also 

hold botanical interest of high ecological value and the hedgerows 

along the boundaries may qualify as "important" under the 

Hedgerow Regulations 1997 and/or classify as habitats of principle 

importance under Section 41 of the NERC Act 2006. The site is 

also located in close proximity to water bodies and woodlands in 

the surrounding area. Therefore the condition of the habitats, the 

potential for protected and priority species and the impacts of the 

proposal should be fully assessed.  

 

Page 11



I therefore recommend that a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 

(PEA) is carried out by a professional / suitably qualified ecologist 

before this application is positively determined. The report must be 

in accordance with the best practise guidance published by CIEEM 

(Chartered Institute for Ecology and Environmental Management). 

Where necessary, and as indicated in the PEA, more detailed 

surveys may also be required (i.e. Phase 2 surveys) and these should 

be presented within an Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) to 

bring together all the results of the preliminary appraisal and 

subsequent phase 2 surveys, along with an impact assessment of the 

proposal, and recommendations for avoidance, mitigation, 

compensation and enhancement. The report should provide an 

assessment to survey the habitats on site (including a hedgerow 

assessment) and the potential for protected and priority species 

including bats, birds, reptiles, amphibians, badger, hedgehogs and 

dormice.  

 

The hedgerows on site may qualify as "important" under the 

Hedgerow Regulations 1997 and/or classify as habitats of principle 

importance under Section 41 of the NERC Act 2006. The LPA has a 

duty to ensure that these hedgerows are conserved and enhanced. 

Therefore the features should be retained within the public realm 

(i.e. do not become domestic curtilage) through providing buffers 

(of at least 5 metres) between the residential gardens and hedgerow 

boundaries so that appropriate management can be secured in the 

long-term. 

 

 

WODC Env Health - Lowlands  Thank you for the opportunity to consult on this application. 

 

I have No Objection in principle. 

 

 

WODC Drainage Engineers  11/03/2022 

I note there was an appeal for this development that was successful 

and that the Planning Inspectorate have specified a s/w condition. 

The Statement submitted for this RES application states that 

percolation tests have been carried out and the result was 

considered acceptable for soakaway drainage, but the final 

engineering calculations for the drainage strategy will not be carried 

out until reserved matters have been granted. We will need to see 

the full test results as part of the strategy (a value is indicated in the 

calculations) as well as measurements of depth to the water table, 

due to the high susceptibility to groundwater flooding on the site. I 

note the objections post the appeal decision, but the drainage 

strategy will need to ensure that flood risk is not increased on site 

or to neighbouring properties as a result of the development. 

 

The Applicant has proposed that the remaining surface water 

drainage matters be subject to a planning condition, to be 

Page 12



discharged prior to commencement of development. If this is to 

replace the condition specified in the appeal decision it should be - 

 

That, prior to the commencement of development, a full surface 

water drainage scheme shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include 

details of the size, position and construction of the drainage scheme 

and results of soakage tests carried out at the site, to demonstrate 

the infiltration rate. Three test results should be submitted for each 

soakage pit as per BRE 365, with the lowest infiltration rate 

(expressed in m/s) used for design. The details shall include a 

management plan setting out the maintenance of the drainage asset. 

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details prior to the first occupation of the development 

hereby approved and shall be maintained in accordance with the 

management plan thereafter. Development shall not take place until 

an exceedance flow routing plan for flows above the 1 in 100 year + 

40% CC event has been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure the proper provision for surface water 

drainage and/ or to ensure flooding is not exacerbated in the locality 

(The Cotswold Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, National Planning 

Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance). If the surface 

water design is not agreed before works commence, it could result 

in abortive works being carried out on site or alterations to the 

approved site layout being required to ensure flooding does not 

occur 

 

In these cases the following notes should also be added to the 

decision notice: 

 

NOTE TO APPLICANT: The Surface Water Drainage scheme 

should, where possible, incorporate Sustainable Drainage 

Techniques in order to ensure compliance with;  

- Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 27 (1))  

- Code for sustainable homes - A step-change in sustainable home 

building practice  

- The local flood risk management strategy published by 

Gloucestershire County Council, as per the Flood and Water 

Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 9 (1))  

- CIRIA C753 SuDS Manual 2015  

- The National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management 

Strategy for England, produced by the Environment Agency in July 

2020, pursuant to paragraph 9 of Section 7 of the Flood and Water 

Management Act 2010.  

- Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage systems 

(March 2015) 

 

 

Page 13



District Ecologist  14/02/2022 

Thank you for consulting me on the above planning application; I have 

the following comments to make with regard to biodiversity 

considerations. 

 

A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal was requested in the previous 

Assistant Biodiversity Officer comments on the application dated July 

2021. The preliminary ecological assessment site visit was carried out 

in October 2021. 

 

I am satisfied overall with the findings of the Preliminary Ecological 

Assessment report (dated 09/12/21, prepared by 4 Acre Ecology 

Ltd.) and the recommendations for biodiversity enhancements. 

 

The ecological report confirms that there are no "hedgerows" 

bordering the site - the southern boundary is comprised of an 

existing close-boarded fence with over-hanging vegetation and the 

western boundary is formed by a dry ditch with ruderal vegetation 

and some occasional young Elder and Hawthorn shrubs. A remnant 

hedgerow forms part of the northern boundary next to the existing 

barn. 

 

Although the site lies within the amber zone of the great crested 

newt district licensing modelled map, the ecological report confirms 

that previous surveys of the nearby ponds have not found any 

evidence of this species. The site is a well-managed paddock and 

contains limited potentially suitable terrestrial habitat for this 

protected species. 

 

External lighting should be sensitively designed with 

foraging/commuting bats in mind. 

 

Precautionary mitigation measures for badgers and nesting birds are 

included in the recommendations of the report. 

 

The development should be implemented in accordance with Section 

7 of the Preliminary Ecological Assessment report (pages 18- 19) to 

ensure adequate protection and enhancement of biodiversity. 

 

Enhancements include gaps in fencing for hedgehogs, native planting 

and new hedgerow planting. However, I also recommend that the 

proposal is an opportunity to provide integrated bird and bat boxes 

within the new buildings. Swift bricks should be installed in clusters of 

at least 3 no. to provide suitable nesting locations for this species, 

which is solely reliant on buildings for breeding. Other species, 

including priority species - house sparrows and starlings - are also 

able to use these bricks, but swifts would not use boxes specifically 

designed for house sparrows and starlings. House martin nest cups 

could also be externally mounted in suitable locations. 

 

Page 14



The side elevations of the new houses provide the best opportunities 

for bird and bat boxes, being located away from doors and windows, 

and majority of disturbances. I would recommend that bird boxes be 

installed into the north or north-east facing elevations and bat boxes 

into the south or southeast facing elevations. Either a condition 

requiring certain boxes to be integrated into specific elevations or for 

details to be submitted for approval should be attached to planning 

consent. 

 

I also recommend an informative with regard to protected species 

and enhancements. 

 

With regard to the landscaping proposals, limited information has 

been provided (e.g. as shown on the landscape strategy drawing P02) 

and full details of all hedgerow planting and wildflower meadow 

creation must be provided for approval as a condition of consent. A 

standard landscaping scheme condition should be applied with 

reference to the specific biodiversity enhancements. 

 

Conditions  

a) The development shall be completed in accordance with the 

recommendations in Section 7 of the Preliminary Ecological 

Assessment report dated 09/12/21 prepared by 4 Acre Ecology Ltd, 

as submitted with the planning application. All the recommendations 

shall be implemented in full according to the specified timescales, 

unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure that biodiversity is protected and enhanced in 

accordance with The Conservation of Habitats and Species 

Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 

1981 as amended, Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of 

the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EH3 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to comply 

with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 

2006. 

 

b) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following biodiversity enhancement features. All the features listed 

below shall be implemented in full, unless otherwise agreed in writing 

by the local planning authority, which shall thereafter be permanently 

retained and maintained. i. At least 1 no. integrated /built-in bat box 

(e.g. tube, brick or access panel) to be installed into the south or 

southeast-facing (side) elevation walls of the new buildings (a total of 

4 no boxes); ii. Clusters of at least 3 no. swift bricks to be integrated 

/built-in to the north or north-eastern (side) elevation walls of the 

new building at 1 metre intervals; and iii. Creation of gaps beneath 

close-boarded fencing for hedgehogs. 

 

Reason: To enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policy EH3 of 

the West Oxfordshire District Local Plan 2031, paragraphs 174, 179 

Page 15



and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework and in order for 

the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and 

Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

c) Standard landscape scheme condition 

Before the occupation of the development hereby approved, a 

comprehensive landscape scheme shall be submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority, including full details of 

native, species-rich hedgerow planting and wildflower meadow areas 

(including a seed mix specification with supplier details), a 5-year 

aftercare period maintenance plan and a long-term Biodiversity 

Management Plan (for the hedgerows and wildflower meadow areas). 

The scheme must show details of all planting areas, tree and plant 

species, numbers and planting sizes. The proposed means of 

enclosure and screening should also be included, together with details 

of any mounding, walls and fences and hard surface materials to be 

used throughout the proposed development. 

 

The entire landscaping scheme shall be completed by the end of the 

planting season immediately following the completion of the 

development or the site being brought into use, whichever is the 

sooner. 

 

REASON: To enhance the site for biodiversity in accordance with 

paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework, Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011-

2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Section 40 of the 

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

d) And the associated Landscaping scheme delivery 

 

If within a period of five years from the date of planting of any 

tree/hedge/shrub that tree/hedge /shrub, or any replacement, is 

removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes seriously 

damaged or defective, another tree/hedge /shrub of the same species 

and size as that originally planted shall be planted in the same location 

as soon as reasonably possible and no later than the first available 

planting season, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 

planning authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure effective delivery of approved landscaping and 

to secure enhancements for biodiversity in accordance with 

paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework, Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and 

in order for the Council to comply with Section 40 of the Natural 

Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

e) Before occupation, details of external lighting shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

The details shall show how and where external lighting will be 

Page 16



installed (including the type of lighting), so that it can be clearly 

demonstrated that light spillage into wildlife corridors will be 

minimised as much as possible. 

 

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the 

specifications and locations set out in the approved details, and these 

shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with these details. Under 

no circumstances should any other external lighting be installed 

without prior consent from the local planning authority. 

 

REASON: To protect foraging/commuting bats in accordance with 

the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as 

amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), 

Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework, Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 of 

the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

Informative 

 

Please note that this consent does not override the statutory 

protection afforded to species protected under the terms of the 

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), 

or any other relevant legislation such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 

and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

 

There is a low risk that great crested newts (GCN) may be present 

at the application site. However, the application site lies within the 

amber impact zone as per the modelled district licence map, which 

indicates that there is moderately suitable habitat for GCN within the 

area surrounding the application site. Therefore, anyone undertaking 

this development should be aware that GCN and their resting places 

are protected at all times by The Conservation of Habitats and 

Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) and the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). Planning permission for 

development does not provide a defence against prosecution under 

this legislation or substitute the need to obtain a protected species 

licence if an offence is likely. If a GCN is discovered during site 

preparation, enabling or construction phases, then all works must 

stop until the advice of a professional/suitably qualified ecologist and 

Natural England is obtained, including the need for a licence. 

 

Works should not take place that will harm nesting birds from March 

to August inclusive. All British birds (while nesting, building nests and 

sitting on eggs), their nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) 

are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside 

Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 

2000. Works that will impact upon active birds' nests should be 

undertaken outside the breeding season to ensure their protection, 

Page 17



i.e. works should only be undertaken between August and February, 

or only after the chicks have fledged from the nest and replacement 

provision made so that there is no net loss of biodiversity. 

 

For more information on hedgehog gaps/holes in fences and walls, 

please visit https://www.hedgehogstreet.org/helphedgehogs/link-your-

garden/ 

 

The applicant and their architect should note the advice of Swift 

Conservation with regard to the installation of the swift bricks 

available at https://www.swift-

conservation.org/Nestboxes&Attraction.htm#Built%20in 

 

 

 

 

Conservation Officer  30/09/2021 

Here are four houses and two designs, one design with two 

versions, handed. They are all of pretty much the same form 

though, with double-pile massing and with long valley gutters at high 

level 

between the front and rear blocks. This gives blocky, deep-plan 

massing, that would appear somewhat voluminous - and it isn't 

particularly characteristic of our vernacular buildings of this scale. 

 

I suggest that they need a re-design, with perhaps two 

perpendicular rear wings of different lengths, and perhaps different 

heights - each set well in from the main gable ends. And in the 

version with front perpendicular wings, they also need in-setting 

from the main gable ends. 

 

Otherwise, the roof pitch, fenestration, materials, etc., look fine.  

 

 

Parish Council  No Comment Received. 

 

 

Conservation Officer  17/02/2022 

Function should indeed follow form - but good design is a happy 

marriage of both layout and massing - neither should compromise 

the other. 

 

Whether they use their double-pile approach or the suggested 

perpendicular wing approach is not the greatest concern, to be 

honest. It is the voluminous four-square blockiness that is the real 

issue - and as the designs currently stand, I suggest that this needs 

to mitigated. 

 

So, if you are minded to support their current approach, I suggest 

that the rear elements should be further inset from the gable ends 

Page 18



of the frontage blocks - say by at least 600 mm or so - noting that 

the current insets are somewhat apologetic. 

 

 

WODC Drainage Engineers  No Comment Received. 

 

 

Conservation Officer  28/03/2022 

I think you have probably done enough with this - the perpendicular 

rear wings and the insets are a significant improvement. And I don't 

think that the presence would be that great from Main Street, whilst 

in longer views from the north and west the development would be 

seen against existing buildings. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 A summary of the representations received are detailed below. Full details can be found on the 

Council's website. 

 

7 third part objections (from 4 neighbours) received relating to: 

 

1) The new hedge is a welcome addition but appears to be outside of the development site; 

2) The LPA has a duty to ensure that hedgerows are conserved and enhanced; 

3) Hedges should be retained within the public realm and buffers (of at least 5 metres) between 

the residential gardens and hedgerow boundaries provided so that appropriate management can be 

secured in the long term; 

4) The scale of these houses - large five bedroom dwellings- and the materials - in particular the 

slate roofs - are not in keeping with Clanfield village; 

5) Error in Design & Access Statement - There has been no development across the field on the 

northern side of the plot; 

6) A detailed landscape and planting schedule should be provided showing the replacement of the 

hedgerow to the western boundary; 

7) The Masterplan Strategy Document does not allow sufficient space to plant hedgerows on the 

northern boundary and where the garage of plot 3 is being built on the boundary line - plot 3 will need 

to move further away from the northern boundary line to accommodate planting of the new hedgerow 

along this boundary; 

8) The proposed space currently allocated within the development area for landscaping on the 

western and northern boundaries is insufficient. The design layouts should be amended to allow 

adequate space for planting within the development area; 

9) The northern boundary is directly opposite the listed building Setting Barn and its gardens; 

10) The proposed landscaping for the northern boundary is insufficient to provide screening of the 

development to Setting Barn. A revised and more detailed planting schedule for landscaping is required, 

including trees, along this border to screen the development from the heritage assets located in this 

area; 

11) the current designs are in fact large executive detached homes that do not compliment the local 

character of the surrounding buildings. The roof ridge heights are approximately 8.5 metres, 

substantially higher than the neighbouring barns and will be dominant in the landscape. The proposed 

slate roofing is not in keeping with the neighbouring properties; 

Page 19



12) The ridge heights and use of slate on the proposed dwelling roofs should be reconsidered and 

amended in-line with the surrounding environment 

13) The design and scale of the proposed dwellings are not in keeping with the surrounding 

character and adjacent properties of Elder Barn and Setting Barn; 

14) Flood risk; 

15) Witnessed surface water laying on the field and manege area on the northern boundary during 

periods of high rainfall; 

16) We note that soak-away drainage is proposed for each dwelling, this approach is not 

recommended in areas where running sand may be encountered and therefore should be subject to 

approval; 

17) A full assessment of the impact of this development on the existing drainage and capacity of the 

local sewer system should be conducted; 

18) No ecology report has been submitted for the outline planning application. Without an 

ecological assessment of the proposed site, existing biodiversity cannot be understood and therefore 

cannot be managed effectively or properly, for which both the LPA and applicant have a duty of care; 

19) The hedgerows illustrated within the plans do not appear to match with reality. The mature 

hedgerows to the western boundary were removed in January 2021 and have not yet been replaced, and 

those shown upon the plans appear to lay outside of the boundaries of this project; 

20) The lack of vegetation along the northern boundary line as outlined is insufficient to provide 

screening of the development to neighbouring properties; 

21) More effective screening is required for reasons of privacy, as well as maintaining the significant 

historical importance and traditional character for Adams Farmhouse, and the listed properties of 

Setting Barn and High House - by creating a buffer barrier to contrast the comfortably old and the stark 

new; 

22) The appearance does not compliment or follow the style of nearby buildings or hold any of the 

'cotswold' type character of dwelling style traditional to the area. Slate roofs are not commonplace 

within the village and would appear dark and stark against other properties and the skyline, especially at 

the height to which they are planned to be (roof ridge heights 8.5m), which would overshadow 

neighbouring properties and appear unsightly; 

23) Bushey Drive has been the original gravelled farm entrance, of Bushey Farm for nearly two 

centuries; 

24) The existing gravel Bushey Drive has been raised by previous owners by adding gravel and is 

more than 15cm higher than the original farm drive. This causes rain run off into Bushey Farm slightly 

mitigated by a channel dug alongside the southern edge - These plans dramatically increase the problem 

by replacing the permeable gravel with tarmac and the area of Bushey Drive 

- The drive has always been designated for light domestic traffic, its infrastructure is fragile and will be 

regularly damaged by refuse lorries using the proposed refuse collection point. 

25) Highway safety; 

26) Poor existing sewer network; 

27) The addition of four houses are not needed in an area, with large numbers already existing and 

more being built in the surrounding area; and 

28) The design of the houses is not in keeping with the setting of nearby houses that includes listed 

buildings. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The submitted Design and Access statement concludes as follows: 

 

Page 20



3.2 The proposals are demonstrably deliverable based on the site assessment work that has been 

carried out to date, and the masterplan describes a high quality and locally distinguishable new 

residential offering for Clanfield.  

 

3.3 The NPPF and the Government's growth agenda seek to ensure that sufficient land is available in 

the appropriate locations to increase housing supply, support growth and boost home ownership. 

 

3.4 The Site is within the control of the owner, who is committed to delivering the development to 

help meet the housing need.  

 

3.5 This Site is appropriately located in relation to the services and facilities in Clanfield alongside 

nearby education opportunities. Furthermore, access and movement infrastructure support access to 

the wider facilities in the area. 

 

3.6 The Site is suitable for housing development because it:  

o Offers a suitable location in relation to existing residential areas around Clanfield;  

o Can be developed immediately;  

o Has recognisable and defensible NPPF compliant boundaries;  

o Has no identified technical constraints that would prevent it being developed for residential 

development immediately;  

o Is highly sustainable, within walking distance to local services and facilities in Clanfield, and;  

o Can deliver an enhanced and extensive range of biodiversity and landscape benefits. 

 

3.7 The masterplan illustrates that the Site can deliver 4 new dwellings which would contribute to 

meeting the housing needs of the area and provide a fantastic new addition to Clanfield. 

 

3.8 This document identifies that the Site has no restricting constraints for development. These 

reserved matters should, therefore, be approved. 

 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H1NEW Amount and distribution of housing 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

H6NEW Existing housing 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH8 Environmental protection 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

EH13 Historic landscape character 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2021 

Page 21



The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 This application relates to Clover Court Bushey Drive Clanfield Bampton. The site comprises 

stables, barn and manege positioned in the northern part of the site with the remainder of it open, split 

into paddocks, adjoining agricultural fields to the north and west. To the south is a farm complex 

(Windmill Farm Conference Centre). To the east are several detached and semi-detached dwellings.  

 

5.2 The Grade II listed buildings Setting Barn and High House are located 50m and 94m to the 

north and northeast respectively. The Grade II listed buildings Windmill House and Barn are located 

70m to the southeast. 

 

5.3 There is some history to the site. Application (ref. 18/01903/CLE) for 'Certificate of Lawfulness 

under Section 191 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for Certificate of lawful existing use or 

development under Section 191 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for: 1. Construction and 

use of all-weather riding arena in accordance with application 07/0863/P/FP 2. Implementation of 

application 11/1626/P/FP being the change of use of land subject to the application to domestic 3. Use of 

land for equestrian use for recreational enjoyment' was approved by the Council on 04/03/2019. That 

application regularised the use of the site. 

 

5.4 Application 19/00115/OUT for 'outline application for four dwellings with access' was refused by 

the Council on 14/01/2019 for the following reason:  

 

5.5 By reason of the location of development, the proposed four dwellings would not respect the village 

character and local distinctiveness or form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development 

and/or the character of the area. Furthermore it is considered that the proposal would involve the loss of an area 

of open space that makes an important contribution to the character and overall appearance of the area. The 

proposed development would erode the visual rural appearance of the application site and introduce a more 

urban character. The proposal is contrary to Policies OS1, OS2, H2 and OS4 of the adopted West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan and the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF.  

 

5.6 Application 19/00115/OUT was subsequently appealed and that appeal was allowed by the 

Inspectorate on 12/05/2020, as in part, that the site was considered to be previously developed land. 

The site therefore has outline consent for four homes.  

 

5.7 The current application is for 'Reserved Matters application for four dwellings (appearance, 

landscaping, layout and scale), pursuant to outline permission 19/00115/OUT'. Therefore, the principle 

of development and access arrangements are established and are not the subject of this application. 

 

5.8 The application is before the Committee as the Parish Council have objected.  

 

5.9 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties, officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Siting, Design, Form and Impact to Designated Heritage Assets; 

Highways;  

Biodiversity; 

Page 22



Residential Amenities; and  

Other Matters 

 

Siting, Design, Form and Impact to Designated Heritage Assets  

 

5.10 Four Grade II listed buildings are within 100m of the site. The Local Planning Authority is 

therefore statutorily required to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, its 

setting, and any features of special architectural or historic interest it may possess, in accordance with 

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

 

5.11 Local Plan Policy EH9 (Historic environment) states 'All development proposals should conserve 

and/ or enhance the special character, appearance and distinctiveness of West Oxfordshire's historic 

environment'. 

 

5.12 Local Plan Policy EH11 (Listed Buildings) states 'Proposals for additions or alterations to, or 

change of use of, a Listed Building (including partial demolition) or for development within the curtilage 

of, or affecting the setting of, a Listed Building, will be permitted where it can be shown to: 

 

a. conserve or enhance the special architectural or historic interest of the building's fabric, detailed 

features, appearance or character and setting; 

b. respect the building's historic curtilage or context or its value within a group and/or its setting, 

including its historic landscape or townscape context; and 

c. retain the special interest that justifies its designation through appropriate design that is 

sympathetic both to the Listed Building and its setting and that of any adjacent heritage assets in terms 

of siting, size, scale, height, alignment, materials and finishes (including colour and texture), design and 

form'. 

 

5.13 Section 16 (particularly paragraphs 197, 199, 200 and 202) of the National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF) Conserving and enhancing the historic environment are also applicable. 

 

5.14 Policy OS2 states that all development should be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its 

context having regard to the potential cumulative impact of development in the locality; form a logical 

complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the character of the area; and be 

compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. 

 

5.15 Policy OS4 requires new development to respect and where possible enhance the character and 

quality of the surroundings, and contribute to local distinctiveness 

 

5.16 The existing site contains stables, barn, a manege and an open field. While these features affirm 

its use as equestrian, as outline consent exists for the development of this site, their removal is not 

objectionable.  

 

5.17 In terms of the pattern of development in the area. The Inspector highlighted that 'short side 

roads and cul de sacs leading off Main Street and Mill Lane are features of this part of the village. Bushey 

Drive forms part of development stretching southwards along the road'. While the development is 

mostly linear along the western side of the A4095, cul de sacs are an intrinsic part of the built form in 

the immediate area and the proposed development would reinforce that pattern.  

 

5.18 While the site is quite open and borders agricultural fields to the north and west. It is also 

bounded by residential development to the east and further residential devolvement and a conference 

Page 23



centre to the south. In that regard, the proposed dwellings would not be isolated and not withstanding 

that it is considered to be previously developed land, would not encroach into the countryside.  

 

5.19 Moving to the dwellings themselves. These are large 5 bed detached homes set in relatively large 

plots. Officers raised initial concerns with the double pile and massing of the dwellings. These were 

subsequently amended to a principal range with twin rear gables, one larger than the other. As noted by 

the Councils Conservation Officer 'the perpendicular rear wings and the insets are a significant 

improvement.' 

 

5.20 While these are somewhat large buildings, immediately to the east of the site are three large 

detached dwellings in relatively large plots (Thistle Dew, Rosedale and Clover Court). Slightly further to 

the northeast and southeast are further large detached dwellings (Bushey Farm and Bramble Cottage). 

There are some smaller detached and semi-detached dwellings in various sized plots; however, arguably, 

the predominant built form in this location is large detached homes in relatively large plots. The 

proposed development would mirror this development. Of note is that the Grade II listed Setting Barn 

(located 50m north of the new dwellings at its nearest point) is also a large detached dwelling in a large 

plot.  

 

5.21 With regard to the proposed materials. While there is a mix of materials in the immediate area, 

it is predominantly natural stonework under slate or Cotswold stone roofs. The materials proposed are 

natural stonework elevations under slate tiled roofs. While slate tiled roofs would be acceptable, 

officers are mindful that a more suitable material could be achieved. As such, a condition is suggested to 

secure sample tiles prior to works beginning. This will enable officers to secure the optimum material. 

Samples of the stonework would also be required, again to secure the optimum material. 

Notwithstanding the sample condition, as high quality natural materials are proposed, officers are 

satisfied that the proposed dwellings take cues from the character and appearance of the area.  

 

5.22 Notwithstanding that the design, materials and scale of the dwellings are acceptable, owing to 

the backland location, views of the development would be heavily restricted from the historic core and 

the Grade II listed buildings Windmill House and Barn to the southeast. As such, the impact of the 

proposal would be mitigated from most public vantage points in the area. Indeed, as noted by the 

Councils Conservation Officer 'I don't think that the presence would be that great from Main Street, 

whilst in longer views from the north and west the development would be seen against existing 

buildings'. The proposed development therefore would not harm the settings of Windmill House and 

Barn. While there would be views between the development and the Grade II listed buildings High 

House and Setting Barn to the north/northeast, these listed buildings are large detached homes 

constructed of natural materials and set in large plots. The proposed development would mirror this 

and as such, is not considered to be harmful to the settings of these listed buildings either. For 

completeness, the proposed development is also not considered be harmful to nearby built form or the 

character and appearance of the area.  

 

5.23 Officers are satisfied, for the reasons set out, that the proposed development will not harm the 

settings or significance of the listed buildings, nearby built form, the historic core, the landscape or the 

character and appearance of the area. As such, the proposal accords with Section 66(1) of the Act, 

Section 16 of the NPPF and Policies OS2, OS4, EH2, EH9 and EH11 of the Local Plan. 

 

Highways 

 

5.24 Access was considered as part of the outline application and was found to be acceptable. 

Nonetheless, the dwellings have a safe and suitable access for all users and sufficient parking spaces are 

Page 24



proposed. Furthermore, OCC Highways have not objected to the scheme. The proposal therefore 

accords with Local Plan Policies T1, T2, T3 and T4; as well as Section 9 of the NPPF (in particular 

paragraphs 110, 111 and 112).  

 

Biodiversity 

 

5.25 Local Plan Policy EH3 (Biodiversity and geodiversity) states 'the biodiversity of West 

Oxfordshire shall be protected and enhanced to achieve an overall net gain in biodiversity and minimise 

impacts on geodiversity'. 

 

5.26 Paragraph 180 of the NPPF sets out a clear hierarchy for proposals affecting biodiversity. The 

hierarchy is to firstly, avoid harm; secondly, where this is not possible, to mitigate any harm on-site; 

thirdly, as a last resort, to compensate for any residual harm. 

 

5.27 The site is previously developed land and the Inspector found 'there are no trees or hedges of 

note on the site' and 'the Council has suggested conditions for a scheme of ecological mitigation, 

integrated bat roosting features, bat friendly lighting and a Landscape and Ecology Management Plan. 

However, no clear justification has been provided for the conditions. As such these conditions are not 

necessary and I have not imposed them'. 

 

5.28 The site is poor quality in terms of existing biodiversity. The ecological report confirms that 

there are no hedgerows of note bordering the site - the southern boundary is comprised of an existing 

close-boarded fence with over-hanging vegetation and the western boundary is formed by a dry ditch 

with ruderal vegetation and some occasional young Elder and Hawthorn shrubs. A remnant hedgerow 

forms part of the northern boundary next to the existing barn. 

 

5.29 Although the site lies within the amber zone of the great crested newt district licensing 

modelled map, the ecological report confirms that previous surveys of the nearby ponds have not found 

any evidence of this species. The site is a well-managed paddock and contains limited potentially suitable 

terrestrial habitat for this protected species. 

 

5.30 As there will be little to no loss of biodiversity, mitigation is not required. However, Local Plan 

Policy EH3 and Paragraph 174 of the Framework, both seek a net gain in biodiversity without identifying 

a specific percentage. The Environment Act 2021 has now passed, and secondary legislation is required 

for it to be implemented. Therefore, the 10% biodiversity net gain requirement set out in the Act is not 

yet law. While that is the case, the applicant has confirmed that they are willing to accept a landscape 

condition securing new hedgerows and planting, bat and bird boxes and the creation of gaps beneath 

close-boarded fencing for hedgehogs. As such, officers consider that these conditions are now justified 

in the interest of securing biodiversity net gain, albeit nominal. The proposal therefore accords with 

Policy EH3 and the NPPF in that regard.  

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.31 Concerns have been raised regarding the amount of built form proposed at the site and the 

potential for overbearing, overshadowing and loss of light impacts to neighbours. However, the three 

dwellings to the west of the site are set in large plots and are a suitable distance from neighbours to not 

result in these impacts. While the dwelling to the east of the plot is quite close to its neighbour to the 

south, the dwelling is to the north and when considering the path of the sun, overbearing, 

overshadowing and loss of light impacts are unlikely.  

 

Page 25



5.32 There are first floor side elevation windows on all of the dwellings. However, these will serve 

bathrooms and dressing rooms as such will be obscure glazed and will be secured by condition as such. 

There are no facing windows less than the 22m industry separation distance standard. As such, loss of 

privacy and overlooking is unlikely.  

 

5.33 Large areas of private amenity space are proposed that are sufficient to serve the new homes.  

 

5.34 There will be an increase in traffic movements in the area. However, only four dwellings are 

proposed therefore the number of movements would be relatively low and are not considered to result 

in detrimental noise, vibration or pollution impacts.  

 

5.35 Officers are satisfied, for the reasons outlined, that the proposal will not detrimentally impinge 

on the residential amenities of the area in regards loss of privacy, or loss of light, overbearing or 

overshadowing impacts, noise, pollution (including light), odours or vibration. In addition sufficient 

private external amenity space is proposed for each property.  

 

Other matters 

 

5.36 Officers note the objection comments relating to flood risk/drainage. However, the site is in 

flood zone 1 and is therefore at the lowest risk of flooding and the proposal does not meet the 

requirements for a flood risk assessment. The Councils drainage team have not objected, however they 

have requested further information relating to drainage matters and have suggested a pre-

commencement condition. Following this comment, the applicant has submitted further information and 

officers are awaiting the comment from our drainage team. Officers consider that this technical issue can 

be overcome either through the submission of information during this process, or the application of a 

pre-commencement condition. It may be that this is overcome prior to the application being heard at 

the April 19th Committee, if that is the case, officers will update Members on the additional 

representations report. Should that not be the case, officers request that this application be delegated 

back to officers to overcome this drainage matter. 

 

5.37 The Council's Environmental Regulatory Services Team were consulted. They raised no 

objection subject to a precautionary contamination condition being applied.  

 

5.38 Officers also note the comments received relating to foul drainage (sewerage) issues in the area. 

However, the addition of 4 homes is unlikely to detrimentally affect the existing capacity of the foul 

water sewerage network. There are no objections in regards to foul drainage therefore.  

 

5.39 Concerns have been raised regarding the delivery of new hedgerows. The details and delivery of 

these will be secured by condition, as such the LPA maintains control over this.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.40 The recommendation to GRANT permission has been taken having regard to the policies and 

proposals in the development plan set out above, and to all the relevant material considerations set out 

in the report. 

 

5.41 However, there are some outstanding technical matters and officers request delegated authority 

to determine the application subject to no new technical matters being raised and to confirm the final 

conditions with the Chairman. 

 

Page 26



6 CONDITION 

 

 

 1  The development shall be commenced within either five years from the date of the outline 

permission reference 19/00115/OUT (appeal decision dated 12/05/2020); or two years from the date of 

this approval, or where there are details yet to be approved, within two years from the final approval of 

those matters. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

as amended. 

 

 2  The car parking areas (including where appropriate the marking out of parking spaces) shown on the 

approved plans shall be constructed before the first occupation of the development hereby approved 

and thereafter retained and used for no other purpose. 

 

REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road safety.  

 

 3  No dwelling shall be occupied until the parking area and driveways have been surfaced and 

arrangements made for all surface water to be disposed of within the site curtilage in accordance with 

details that have been first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure loose materials and surface water do not encroach onto the adjacent highway to 

the detriment of road safety. 

 

 4  No dwelling shall be occupied until space has been laid out within the curtilage of that dwelling to 

enable two vehicles to enter, turn round and leave the curtilage in forward gear. 

 

REASON: In the interest of road safety.   

 

 5  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 

without modification) no additional windows/rooflights shall be constructed in the side elevation(s) of 

the building(s) hereby approved. 

 

REASON: To safeguard privacy in the adjacent properties. 

 

 6  Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, all of the proposed first floor side 

elevation windows shall be fitted with obscure glazing (and either non opening or more than 1.7 metres 

above the floor level) and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter.  

 

REASON: To protect the residential amenities of the occupants of neighbouring dwellings. 

 

 7  Before above ground building work commences, a schedule of materials (including samples) to be 

used in the elevations and roofs of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in the approved materials and shall be 

retained as such thereafter.  

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 

 

Page 27



 8  In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development, it 

must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk 

assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of Environment Agency's Model 

Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11, and where remediation is necessary a 

remediation scheme must be prepared, to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 

removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property, and which is subject to the 

approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  

 

REASON: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of the amenity and to accord with 

West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

 9  The garages hereby permitted shall be used for the parking of vehicles and ancillary domestic storage 

only and shall not be used as additional or independent living accommodation without the prior 

approval, in writing, of the Local Planning Authority.  

 

REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road safety and 

to protect the amenity of nearby occupiers. 

 

10  The development hereby permitted shall be completed in accordance with the recommendations in 

Section 7 of the Preliminary Ecological Assessment report dated 09/12/21 prepared by 4 Acre Ecology 

Ltd, as submitted with the planning application. All the recommendations shall be implemented in full 

according to the specified timescales, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure that biodiversity is protected and enhanced in accordance with The Conservation 

of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as 

amended, Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework, 

Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 

of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

11  Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved the following details shall be 

submitted to the Council for approval: 

 

a) Type and locations of 4 bat boxes and 4 bird boxes; and  

b) Location of gaps beneath close-boarded fencing for hedgehogs 

 

The approved details shall be implemented in full, prior to the first occupation of the development, 

unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, and shall thereafter be permanently 

retained and maintained.  

 

REASON: To enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire District 

Local Plan 2031, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework and in order 

for the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

12  Before the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a comprehensive landscape 

scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, including full 

details of native, species-rich hedgerow planting and any other proposed planting of trees/shrubs. The 

scheme must show details of all planting areas, tree and plant species, numbers and planting sizes. The 

proposed means of enclosure and screening should also be included, together with details of any 

mounding, walls and fences and hard surface materials to be used throughout the proposed 

development. 

Page 28



 

The entire landscaping scheme shall be completed by the end of the planting season immediately 

following the completion of the development or the site being brought into use, whichever is the 

sooner. 

 

REASON: To enhance the site for biodiversity in accordance with paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011-2031 and in 

order for the Council to comply with Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities 

Act 2006. 

 

13  If within a period of five years from the date of planting of any tree/hedge/shrub that tree/hedge 

/shrub, or any replacement, is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes seriously damaged 

or defective, another tree/hedge /shrub of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be 

planted in the same location as soon as reasonably possible and no later than the first available planting 

season, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure effective delivery of approved landscaping and to secure enhancements for 

biodiversity in accordance with paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework, 

Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to comply with 

Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

14  Before the first occupation of the development hereby approved, details of external lighting shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The details shall show how and 

where external lighting will be installed (including the type of lighting), so that it can be clearly 

demonstrated that light spillage into wildlife corridors will be minimised as much as possible. 

 

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications and locations set out in the 

approved details, and these shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with these details. Under no 

circumstances should any other external lighting be installed without prior consent from the local 

planning authority. 

 

REASON: To protect foraging/commuting bats in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and 

Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), Circular 

06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EH3 of the 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural 

Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 

INFORMATIVES :- 

 

Please note that this consent does not override the statutory protection afforded to species protected 

under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant legislation such as the Wild 

Mammals Act 1996 and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

 

All British bat species are protected under The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

(as amended), which implements the EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the United Kingdom, and the Wildlife 

and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). This protection extends to individuals of the species and their 

roost features, whether occupied or not. A derogation licence from Natural England would be required 

before any works affecting bats or their roosts are carried out.  

Page 29



 

All British birds (while nesting, building nests, sitting on eggs and feeding chicks), their nests and eggs 

(with certain limited exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside 

Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. Works that will impact upon 

active birds' nests should be undertaken outside the breeding season to ensure their protection, i.e. 

works should only be undertaken between August and February, or only after the chicks have fledged 

from the nest.  

 

In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected species, or if evidence of protected 

species is found during works, then you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced 

ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to commencing works (with 

regard to bats). 

 

Applicants are strongly encouraged to minimise energy demand, and take climate action, through fitting: 

 

 Wall, roof and floor insulation, and ventilation  

 High performing triple glazed windows and airtight frames 

 Energy efficient appliances and water recycling measures 

 Sustainably and locally sourced materials  

 

For further guidance please visit:  

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/make-a-planning-

application/sustainability-standards-checklist/  

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/how-to-achieve-net-zero-carbon-homes/ 

 

There is a low risk that great crested newts (GCN) may be present at the application site. However, the 

application site lies within the amber impact zone as per the modelled district licence map, which 

indicates that there is moderately suitable habitat for GCN within the area surrounding the application 

site. Therefore, anyone undertaking this development should be aware that GCN and their resting 

places are protected at all times by The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as 

amended) and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). Planning permission for 

development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this legislation or substitute the 

need to obtain a protected species licence if an offence is likely. If a GCN is discovered during site 

preparation, enabling or construction phases, then all works must stop until the advice of a 

professional/suitably qualified ecologist and Natural England is obtained, including the need for a licence. 

 

For more information on hedgehog gaps/holes in fences and walls, please visit 

https://www.hedgehogstreet.org/helphedgehogs/link-your-garden/ 

 

The applicant and their architect should note the advice of Swift Conservation with regard to the 

installation of the swift bricks available at https://www.swift-

conservation.org/Nestboxes&Attraction.htm#Built%20in 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: David Ditchett 

Telephone Number: 01993 861649 

Date: 5th April 2022 

Page 30



 
Application Number 21/03643/FUL 

Site Address 46 Market Square 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX28 6AL 

 

Date 5th April 2022 

Officer Esther Hill 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Witney Parish Council 

Grid Reference 435573 E       209531 N 

Committee Date 19th April 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

Application Details: 

Demolition of existing outbuilding and rebuild to create a one and half storey three bedroom house 

with associated amenity area and two car parking spaces. (Amended) 

 

 

Page 31



Applicant Details: 

Mr And Mrs J Druce Harding 

15 Mill Meadow 

Ducklington 

Oxon 

OX27 7AY 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council  While Witney Town Council does not object to this application in 

terms of a new dwelling, it notes that Councillors express concern 

for limited cycle and bin storage on the site. Members ask that all 

efforts are made to provide cycle storage adequate for a family 

home and bin storage sufficient for the multiple waste bin types. 

 

 

OCC Highways  The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact ( in terms of highway safety and convenience ) on the 

adjacent highway network 

Recommendation: 

Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission, subject to the following 

condition 

-G28 parking as plan 

 

 

WODC Env Health - Lowlands  Thank you for the opportunity to consult. 

 

I have No Objection in principle. 

 

A standard condition around a Construction (Demolition) 

Environmental Management Plan (EMP), would be appropriate under 

the circumstances.  

 

 

WODC Drainage Engineers  Additional Details requested. 

 

 

Conservation Officer  Consultee Comments: 

 

Context:  an outbuilding known as Long Barn located to the rear, 

and within the curtilage of no.46 Market Square - a Grade II listed 

building (list entry 1213490), located in Witney & Cogges 

Conservation Area. No. 46 was formerly known as Bull Inn and 

dates from early-mid C18 with C19 alterations.  The Bull Inn stated 

to be brewery tap to Clinch and Co Brewery, the original owners 

and occupiers of what is now the Wychwood Brewery. 

 

Page 32



The building is a long linear free standing building running parallel to 

and having an unbroken west facing stone wall fronting onto the 

entrance road into what was formerly an entrance to the Brewery 

and is now the Eagle Industrial Estate from Market Square.  

 

From the photographs provided, I note that there are still some 

distinguishable architectural characteristics that relay its significance 

and context as an outbuilding, possibly cartshed or similar with a 

historic association to the former Bull Inn. Our OS mapping records 

show the structure existed at this current location at least from 

1875. The outbuilding appears to be a substantial and solid structure 

that looks to be structurally sound. 

 

In Witney and Cogges Conservation Area Appraisal, its states: 'For 

centuries, High Street and Market Square have represented the 

commercial heart of the old town; a long and memorable street of 

shops giving way to houses at its northern end, whose essential 

character has remained intact since the Middle Ages…in particular 

Market Square at the street's southern end - marks the commercial 

focus of the old town. Historically, the street was lined with a 

combination of shops, houses and inns - a mix that remains strongly 

intact.  And, Market Square and High Street are primarily defined by 

their buildings. 

 

Opinion: the outbuilding is still clearly viewed from Market Square 

(as shown on the image above) and is considered to make a positive 

contribution to the character, appearance and setting of the 

principal listed building (inc. curtilage) and the conservation area. 

 

The applicant's heritage statement and justification for demolition of 

this building is considered to be inadequate, stating that the building: 

…'has no damp proof course to the stone walls and little insulation 

to its walls or floors and would require extensive and substantial 

works to meet both current Building Regulation requirements and 

to obtain the requisite Commercial Energy Performance 

Certificates, and that a new building on the same footprint would 

achieve an optimum viable use'. 

 

However, there is no evidence submitted to suggest that this 

historic outbuilding is incapable of conversion, is at risk in its 

current condition, or incapable of having an optimum viable use in 

its current status.  Furthermore, the building appears to be a 

substantial and solid structure with no evidence to suggest it is 

structurally unsound.   As evidenced with other listed outbuildings 

around the District, there are very few that are incapable of being 

converted. 

 

Therefore, the applicant has not provided sufficient evidence and 

justification that outweighs the harm to this outbuilding, the 

Page 33



principal listed building and its setting, and appearance and setting of 

the conservation area 

 

Furthermore, the proposed structure with extension that extends 

outwards into the current open and characterful courtyard is 

incongruous and it will not respect the historic curtilage, context 

and setting of the heritage assets, including its historic townscape 

context.  And, the proposed form and layout of the development 

will not respect and build on the pre-existing historic character (and 

building layout). 

 

Notwithstanding, the demolition of this interesting and characterful 

building represents the loss of a vernacular outbuilding that 

delineates and provides historic and architectural context to its 

relationship to former Bull Inn and Brewery.  And, its loss would 

have a deleterious impact, and result in the erosion of the 

character, appearance and setting of all the heritage assets 

identified. 

  

Recommendations: Refusal, it does not preserve the character, 

appearance and setting of the heritage assets identified. 

 

Reasons:  Contrary to policies EH9, EH10, EH11, EH13 OS4, NPPF 

2021, and WODC Design Guidance and Witney & Cogges 

Conservation Area Appraisal 

 

 

WODC Drainage Engineers  No objection subject to a Pre commencement Condition. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No representations have been received. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 A planning support statement has been submitted which incorporates a Heritage Impact Assessment 

and Design and Access Statement. This document is available on the Council's website. The statements 

have been summarised and concluded as follows: 

 

Listed Building Consent and Planning Permission has been submitted for the demolition and rebuilding, 

in an extended form, of an outbuilding to the rear of 46 Market Street, Witney, to provide a three 

bedroomed house. The proposal would lead to less than substantial harm to the setting of the listed 

former Bull Inn, but that the public benefits of the proposal would be to provide a new family house in a 

highly sustainable location in the centre of Witney and put this part of the curtilage of the listed building, 

in a modified form, back into an optimum viable use. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

WIT5NE Witney town centre strategy 

Page 34



NPPF 2021 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

EH16 Non designated heritage assets 

E1NEW Land for employment 

NPPF 2021 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

E6NEW Town centres 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH8 Environmental protection 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

EH13 Historic landscape character 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information and Proposed Development 

 

5.1 The application seeks planning permission for the demolition and rebuilding, in an extended form, of 

an outbuilding to the rear of 46 Market Street, Witney, to provide a three bedroomed house with 

associated amenity area and two car parking spaces. 

 

5.2 The application site relates to an outbuilding known as Long Barn located to the rear, and within the 

curtilage of no.46 Market Square, Witney, a Grade II listed building (list entry 1213490). No. 46 was 

formerly known as Bull Inn and dates from early-mid C18 with C19 alterations.  The Bull Inn stated to 

be brewery tap to Clinch and Co Brewery, the original owners and occupiers of what is now the 

Wychwood Brewery. Long Barn is curtilage listed, locally listed and falls within the Witney & Cogges 

Conservation Area. The building is a long linear free standing building running parallel to the entrance 

road of the Eagle Industrial Estate from Market Square. The ground floor of 46 Market Square is 

occupied in part by Church Green Books and by the offices of Dana Care, the upper floors of the 

building and its attached outbuildings are used as offices. The outbuilding which is the subject of this 

application has been split into three units and is used for storage, as a workshop and an office. 

 

5.3 Your officers were unable to find any planning history specifically relating to the outbuilding which is 

the subject of this application. However, from the Heritage Statement provided and the consultation 

comments received from your Listed Building and Conservation Officers, it is believed that the 

outbuilding was possibly a cartshed or similar with a historic association to the former Bull Inn and was 

converted to offices in the late 1970's. 

 

5.4 The application has been brought before Members of the Lowlands Sub Planning Committee as your 

officers recommendation is contrary to the Town Council. 

 

5.5 Amended drawings have been submitted as part of this application following the Town Councils 

concerns regarding the lack of cycle and bin storage and following the consultation comments received 

from the WODC Drainage Officer, who requested additional information. 

Page 35



Proposed Development 

 

5.6 Proposed is to demolish all of the existing single storey barn apart form a small section to the west 

which is not within the applicants ownership. The stone from the existing walls and the concrete tiles 

from the roof will be reused to construct a one and half storey 3-bedroom house. The proposed 

dwelling is to be situated on the footprint of Long Barn and has a cross gable section which extends out 

across an existing car parking area, the proposed dwelling is 1.55m taller at eaves level and 1.73m taller 

at ridge level than the existing Long Barn. The proposed dwelling has three high level windows and six 

roof lights on its southern elevation which faces Eagle Industrial Estate, it has three windows and two 

doors at ground floor level and two dormer windows, a roof light, and a window at first floor level on 

its northern elevation. The proposed dwelling also has bi folding doors and a Juliet balcony on its 

western elevation and two doors and two windows at ground floor level and a dormer window and a 

window at first floor level on its eastern elevation. The proposed materials are natural stone, clay tiles, 

double glazed wooden windows and doors and an aluminium bi folding door. The proposed dwelling 

would also have associated outdoor amenity space in the form of a patio within an enclosed courtyard 

space. Two parking spaces are proposed and bin and cycle storage.  

 

5.7 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties, your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

-Principle 

-Design and Impact on Heritage Assets and the Conservation Area 

-Residential Amenity 

-Highways 

 

Officers Assessment 

 

Principle 

 

5.8 In regards to the principle of development, locational policy OS2 of the adopted West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan identifies Witney as a 'Main Service Centre' within the settlement hierarchy. Policy H2 allows 

in principle for new dwellings in main service centres, on previously developed land within or adjoining 

the built up area provided the loss of any existing use would not conflict with other plan policies and the 

proposal complies with the general principles set out in Policy OS2 and any other relevant policies in the 

plan.  

 

5.9 As stated within policy H2 the development has to comply with any other relevant policies in the 

plan. Your Officers consider the relevant policies to be OS2- Locating development in the right places, 

OS4- High quality design, E1- Land for Employment, E6- Town centres, T4- Parking provision, EH3- 

Biodiversity and geodiversity, EH8- Environmental protection, EH9 -Historic environment, EH10- 

Conservation areas, EH11- Listed buildings, EH13 - Historic landscape character and WIT5- Witney 

Town Centre Strategy.  

 

5.10 As stated within the supporting documents submitted, the last known use for Long Barns is as a 

workshop, storage and office space. Given its most recent use and that the site is immediately adjacent 

to and shares access with the Eagle Industrial Estate, your officers are satisfied that whilst it does not fall 

within the Article 4 Directions of the industrial estate, that the site is categorised as an employment site. 

Therefore, Policy E1 is relevant when considering this application. Policy E1 states that non-employment 

uses on employment sites will be refused except in the following circumstances - 

Page 36



 where it can be demonstrated that the site or premises are not reasonably capable of being used 

or redeveloped for employment purposes; or 

 where the site or premises are considered unsuitable on amenity, environmental or highway 

safety grounds for employment uses; or 

 where the proposed use includes community, leisure, or retail uses which are complementary 

and compatible to the functioning of the employment site and the local community, and conform 

with Policy E6: Town Centres; or 

 where substantial community benefits would be achieved by allowing alternative forms of 

development. 

 

Your officers do not consider that sufficient information has been provided demonstrating that Long 

Barn is not capable of being used or redeveloped for employment uses. From the supporting documents 

submitted as part of this application your officers believe that the applicants argument is that the 

development will provide a community benefit, as they believe that proposal would secure the optimum 

viable use of a heritage asset. However, no evidence has been submitted to suggest that this historic 

outbuilding is incapable of conversion, is at risk in its current condition, or incapable of having an 

optimum viable use in its current status. Your officers therefore consider this proposal to be contrary 

to policy E1. 

 

5.11 Additionally, as stated within policy H2 the development has to comply with the general principles 

of policy OS2 which states that all development should;  

 

-Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential cumulative 

impact of development in the locality,  

-Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the character of the 

area  

-As far as is reasonably possible protect or enhance the local landscape and the setting of the 

settlement/s; 

-Not involve the loss of an area of open space or any other feature that makes an important 

contribution to the character or appearance of the area.  

-Conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built environment. 

  

5.12 Your officers are of the opinion that the principle of the proposal does not comply with the general 

principles set out in Policies OS2 and other relevant policies in this plan.  The details of the proposal are 

assessed against the general principles of Policy OS2, and in detail against the other relevant policies as 

outlined above, guidance and legislation in the relevant sections below: 

 

Design and Impact on Heritage Assets and the Conservation Area 

 

5.13 Long Barn is a grade II curtilage listed building in association with no.46 Market Square, Witney. 

There are also listed buildings to the north and the south of Long Barn. This proposal is to demolish 

Long Barn almost in its entirety. Whilst Long Barn is curtilage listed it should be treated as any other 

grade II listed building as stated within Paragraph: 044 Reference ID: 18a-044-20190723 of government 

planning guidance, all grades of listed building, unless the list entry indicates otherwise, the listing status covers 

the entire building, internal and external, and may cover objects fixed to it, and also curtilage buildings or other 

structures. 

 

5.14 The Local Planning Authority is therefore statutorily required to have special regard to the 

desirability of preserving the building, its setting, and any features of special architectural or historic 

Page 37



interest it may possess, in accordance with Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Building and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

 

Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in determining applications, 

local planning authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining or enhancing the 

significance of heritage assets. In particular, paragraph 199 states that when considering the impact of a 

proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset - such as a Listed Building, or 

Conservation Area - great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more important 

the asset, the greater the weight should be). Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated 

heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require 

clear and convincing justification (paragraph 200). Paragraph 202 states that where a development 

proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this 

harm should harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, where appropriate, 

securing its optimal viable use.  

 

5.15 In order to consider the effect of a scheme on the significance of the listed building, there is a need 

to identify that significance. In this instance, it is the buildings distinguishable architectural characteristics 

that relay its significance and context as an outbuilding, possibly cartshed or similar with a historic 

association to the former Bull Inn, its age, form and prominent location within the conservation area. 

The outbuilding is clearly viewed from Market Square and is considered to make a positive contribution 

to the character, appearance and setting of the principal listed building (inc. curtilage) and the 

conservation area. 

 

5.16 The demolition of this interesting and characterful building would result in the complete loss of a 

heritage asset. Paragraph 201 of the NPPF states that if a development results in the total loss of 

significance of a designated heritage asset that the local planning authority should refuse consent, unless 

it can be demonstrated that the total loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that 

outweigh that loss. Paragraph 200 states that any loss of a heritage asset should require clear and 

convincing justification and when the development includes the loss of a listed building the justification 

should be exceptional. The applicant's heritage statement and justification for demolition of this building 

is considered to be inadequate, stating that the building 'has no damp proof course to the stone walls 

and little insulation to its walls or floors and would require extensive and substantial works to meet 

both current Building Regulation requirements and to obtain the requisite Commercial Energy 

Performance Certificates, and that a new building on the same footprint would achieve an optimum 

viable use'. However, there is no evidence submitted to suggest that this historic outbuilding is incapable 

of conversion, is at risk in its current condition, or incapable of having an optimum viable use in its 

current status.  Furthermore, the building appears to be a substantial and solid structure with no 

evidence to suggest it is structurally unsound. Therefore, the applicant has not provided sufficient 

evidence and justification for the proposed development that outweighs the complete loss of this listed 

building.  

 

 

5.17 In addition, the loss of a vernacular outbuilding that delineates and provides historic and 

architectural context to its relationship to former Bull Inn and Brewery will have a harmful impact on 

the setting of the principal listing building. The proposed dwelling is larger in scale in terms of its 

footprint, height and volume, its existing linear plan form is also to be changed and the character of the 

building will be completely lost by the associated domestication such as the additional windows, doors 

and balcony, as a result of the use change. The proposed extension into the characterful courtyard is 

incongruous and it will not respect the historic curtilage, context and setting of the heritage assets, 

including its historic townscape context. The proposed form and layout of the development will not 

Page 38



respect and build on the pre-existing historic character (and building layout). Therefore, the loss of Long 

Barn would have a deleterious impact, and result in the erosion of the character, appearance and setting 

of the principal listed building, neighbouring listed buildings and the Conservation Area.  The proposal is 

therefore contrary to policies OS2, OS4, EH10, EH11, EH13 OS4, NPPF 2021, and WODC Design 

Guidance.  

 

5.18 Notwithstanding the listed status of Long Barn, your officers have concerns with the proposed 

scale and design of the dwelling. Given the courtyard setting of the proposed dwelling, which has other 

large buildings within very close proximity, the site is quite constrained it terms of size and its 

relationship with neighbouring buildings. Your officers have concerns with the proposed scale of the 

extension into the courtyard in particular, as it is 8m in depth and 7.6m long and appears to be 

incongruous and cramped in this location.  Therefore your officer consider that the proposal is contrary 

to policy OS4 of the Adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan.    

 

5.19 Whilst the existing building is curtilage listed, it is also locally listed. Policy EH9 states that when 

considering proposals that affect, directly or indirectly, the significance of non- designated heritage 

assets, a balanced judgement will be made having regard to: 

o the scale of any harm or loss; 

o the significance of the heritage asset; and 

o the public benefits of the development. If it is determined through the relevant evidence that currently 

non-designated buildings, structures, historic landscapes or archaeology are of national significance, 

those elements of this policy for designated heritage assets will apply. 

 

For the reasons already stated above the proposal is therefore also considered to be contrary to policy 

EH9 of the Adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan.    

 

5.20  In terms of the impact on the Conservation Area, local authorities have a legal duty to preserve or 

enhance and must have regard to section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990 in respect of any development proposal either preserving or enhancing the character of 

Conservation Area. Further to this the paragraphs of section 16 'Conserving and enhancing the historic 

environment' of the NPPF are relevant to consideration of the application. In Witney and Cogges 

Conservation Area Appraisal, its states: 'For centuries, High Street and Market Square have represented 

the commercial heart of the old town; a long and memorable street of shops giving way to houses at its 

northern end, whose essential character has remained intact since the Middle Ages…in particular 

Market Square at the street's southern end - marks the commercial focus of the old town. Historically, 

the street was lined with a combination of shops, houses and inns - a mix that remains strongly intact.  

And, Market Square and High Street are primarily defined by their buildings'. 

 

Long Barn can be clearly viewed from within Market Square and by reason if its traditional character and 

historic significance your officers consider that it positively contributes to the character and appearance 

of the Witney and Cogges Conservation Area. This proposal involves the demolition of this characterful 

building and given the scale and design of the proposed dwelling, officers do not consider that the 

proposed development would enhance or protect the Conservation Area. As such this proposal would 

be contrary the legislation and guidance above and policies EH9, EH10 and EH13 of the of the Adopted 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan.    

 

5.21 The proposals in this application will result in the complete loss of a grade II listed building and will 

cause harm to the significance of the principal listed building and its setting, and the appearance and 

setting of the conservation area and this harm is identified as being 'less than substantial'. As such, 

Paragraph 202 of the NPPF directs decision makers to weigh that harm against the public benefits of the 

Page 39



proposal, including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use. The building appears to be in a 

good condition and its ongoing use as an office, workshop and storage space would not be affected by 

this refusal. Officers note that the proposed development would result in some benefits, these include, 

minor economic benefits from the construction phase, however these are minor and short term. The 

main benefit of this proposal is that it would create an additional three bedroom residential dwelling 

within a sustainable location, which would help with the need for additional housing. However, your 

officers are satisfied that any public benefits arising from the scheme are outweighed by the total loss of 

a grade II listed building and the harm caused to the principal listed building and its setting, and the 

appearance and setting of the conservation area.  

 

For the above reasons it is considered that the scheme would result in the loss of a listed building which 

would harm the setting of 43 Market Square, the neighbouring listed building and the Conservation 

Area. The significance of Long Barn as a designated heritage asset would be diminished, and without 

public benefit that would outweigh the total loss of a listed building and the less than substantial harm 

caused to the principal listed building and conservation area. The proposal is therefore judged to be 

contrary to the duty to Sections 66(1) and 72(1) of the Planning (LBCA) Act 1990. It would also fail to 

meet the requirements of Section 16 of the NPPF, and policies EH10 and EH11 of the Adopted West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.22 In regards to the impact on neighbouring amenity, this has been carefully assessed. Policy OS2 

states that development be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity 

of existing occupants. Your officers do have a number of concerns relating to the impact this 

development would have on residential amenity issues such as loss of light, loss of privacy, overbearing, 

overlooking and noise and disturbance.  

 

The proposed dwelling is to be situated within very close proximity to commercial and industrial uses, 

which include buildings forming part of the courtyard, the dwelling will also run parallel with the 

entrance into an industrial estate. Your officers did have initial concerns with a residential dwelling in 

this location, given the noise and disturbance impacts which may arise from the adjoining uses, such as 

vehicular and pedestrian movements and machinery. However, the WODC Pollutions Officer was 

consulted on this application and raised no objections subject to conditions.   

 

Given that the dwelling is proposed in a courtyard location surrounded by high walls and that a large 

part of this courtyard is to be filled with the proposed cross gable extension, your officers have 

concerns that the development would result In an overbearing and enclosed feeling for the future 

occupiers. It is also arguable that this would also result in insufficient light into the building itself and will 

provide a poor outlook from the proposed openings therefore providing poor living conditions. There 

are a number of windows within the neighbouring buildings on the courtyard which would given rise to 

some harm in terms of overlooking and loss of privacy into the proposed dwelling.  

 

In view of the above, your officers consider that the proposed dwelling would give rise to unacceptable 

levels of harms in terms of neighbouring amenity issues and is therefore contrary to policies OS2 and 

OS4 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

Highways 

 

5.23 OCC Highways have been consulted on the application and have raised no objections in regards to 

highways safety and convenience subject to conditions. However, whilst the proposed parking spaces 

Page 40



meet the guidance set out by OCC Highways, your officers do have some concerns with the practicality 

of manoeuvring vehicles in such a confined space. However, given the town centre location of the 

proposed dwelling and the amount of other parking options within the immediate locality, your officers 

considers the scheme to be acceptable and complies with policy T4 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan.   

 

Other Matters 

 

5.24 Following the submission of additional documents, the WODC Drainage Officer has not objected 

to this application subject to pre commencement conditions. 

 

5.25 Witney Town Council have raised no objections to this proposal however, they did request that 

the provision of cycle and bin storage is provided. Following the Town Councils comments amended 

drawings have been submitted providing both bin and cycle storage.   

 

5.26 The WODC Pollutions Officer have raised no objection to the proposal subject to a condition 

requesting that a Construction (Demolition) Environmental Management Plan (EMP) is provided.  

  

5.27 In terms of Biodiversity, a Protected Species Survey Report was submitted as part of this 

application. Officers note that the report refers to the proposed development as 'conversion and 

extension to existing building' however the proposal is for the demolition and rebuild. The results of the 

survey show that no bats or evidence of bats were found and that the barn offered 'negligible' potential 

to offer shelter to roosting bats. The survey also found no evidence of nesting birds. Bat and bird boxes 

have been proposed as part of the scheme. Notwithstanding the incorrect development description, 

given the results of the report officers consider that the proposal would comply with policy EH3 of the 

Adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.28 For the reasons outlined above, the scheme would fail to preserve the curtilage listed building, its 

features, its significance and the setting of 43 Market Square, the neighbouring listed buildings and the 

Witney and Cogges Conservation Area. Consequently, the significance of Long Barn as a designated 

heritage asset would be diminished, and without public benefit that would outweigh the less than 

substantial harm caused. The proposal is therefore judged to be contrary to the duty to Sections 66(1) 

and 72(1) of the Planning (LBCA) Act 1990. It would also fail to meet the requirements of Section 16 of 

the NPPF, and policies EH10 and EH11 of the Adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

5.29 Your officers additionally consider that the proposed development would fail to comply with the 

provisions of Policies OS2, EH9, EH10, EH11, EH13 OS4, NPPF 2021, and WODC Design Guidance 

2016 and Witney & Cogges Conservation Area Appraisal. 

 

5.30 In light of the above, the application is recommended for refusal. 

 

6 REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

1 The proposal will result in the complete loss of a grade II curtilage listed building and by reason of 

the proposed demolition of this building and the scale, siting and design of the proposed building, 

the proposal will cause harm to the significance of the principal listed building its setting and the 

character and setting of the Witney and Cogges Conservation Area, this harm is identified as being 

'less than substantial'. The loss of the heritage asset and the less than substantial harm which would 

result from the development proposed, would not be outweighed by any discernible public benefits. 

Page 41



Furthermore, no clear or convincing justification has been submitted to demonstrate that the 

optimal use of the heritage asset is a risk. Consequently, the proposal is contrary to policies OS2, 

OS4, H2, EH9, EH10, EH11, EH12 and EH16 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, Section 16 

of the National Planning Policy Framework, Section 14 of the WODC Design Guide 2016, the 

Witney and Cogges Conservation Area Appraisal and Sections 66(1) and 72(1) of the Planning 

(Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

 

2 Insufficient information has been provided demonstrating that Long Barn is not capable of being 

used or redeveloped for employment uses and no substantial community benefits would be 

achieved by the proposed development, therefore it is contary to Policy E1 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.  

 

 

3 By reason of its scale, siting and design the proposed dwelling will appear cramped and incongruous 

within this location and would result in a detrimental impact on the residential amenity and living 

conditions for future occupants. The proposal is therefore considered contrary to Policies OS2, 

OS4 and H2 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide, the 

National Design Guide and the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Esther Hill 

Telephone Number: 01993 861690 

Date: 5th April 2022 

  

Page 42



Application Number 21/03644/LBC 

Site Address 46 Market Square 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX28 6AL 

 

Date 5th April 2022 

Officer Esther Hill 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Witney Parish Council 

Grid Reference 435573 E       209531 N 

Committee Date 19th April 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

Application Details: 

Demolition of existing outbuilding and rebuild to create a one and half storey three bedroom house 

with associated amenity area and two car parking spaces. (Amended) 

 

 

 

Page 43



Applicant Details: 

Mr And Mrs J Druce Harding 

15 Mill Meadow 

Ducklington 

Oxon 

OX27 7AY 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Conservation Officer  Consultee Comments: 

 

Context:  an outbuilding known as Long Barn located to the rear, 

and within the curtilage of no.46 Market Square - a Grade II listed 

building (list entry 1213490), located in Witney & Cogges 

Conservation Area. No. 46 was formerly known as Bull Inn and 

dates from early-mid C18 with C19 alterations.  The Bull Inn stated 

to be brewery tap to Clinch and Co Brewery, the original owners 

and occupiers of what is now the Wychwood Brewery. 

 

The building is a long linear free standing building running parallel to 

and having an unbroken west facing stone wall fronting onto the 

entrance road into what was formerly an entrance to the Brewery 

and is now the Eagle Industrial Estate from Market Square.  

 

From the photographs provided, I note that there are still some 

distinguishable architectural characteristics that relay its significance 

and context as an outbuilding, possibly cartshed or similar with a 

historic association to the former Bull Inn. Our OS mapping records 

show the structure existed at this current location at least from 

1875. The outbuilding appears to be a substantial and solid structure 

that looks to be structurally sound. 

 

In Witney and Cogges Conservation Area Appraisal, its states: 'For 

centuries, High Street and Market Square have represented the 

commercial heart of the old town; a long and memorable street of 

shops giving way to houses at its northern end, whose essential 

character has remained intact since the Middle Ages…in particular 

Market Square at the street's southern end - marks the commercial 

focus of the old town. Historically, the street was lined with a 

combination of shops, houses and inns - a mix that remains strongly 

intact.  And, Market Square and High Street are primarily defined by 

their buildings. 

 

Opinion: the outbuilding is still clearly viewed from Market Square 

(as shown on the image above) and is considered to make a positive 

contribution to the character, appearance and setting of the 

principal listed building (inc. curtilage) and the conservation area. 

 

  

 

Page 44



The applicant's heritage statement and justification for demolition of 

this building is considered to be inadequate, stating that the building: 

…'has no damp proof course to the stone walls and little insulation 

to its walls or floors and would require extensive and substantial 

works to meet both current Building Regulation requirements and 

to obtain the requisite Commercial Energy Performance 

Certificates, and that a new building on the same footprint would 

achieve an optimum viable use'. 

 

However, there is no evidence submitted to suggest that this 

historic outbuilding is incapable of conversion, is at risk in its 

current condition, or incapable of having an optimum viable use in 

its current status.  Furthermore, the building appears to be a 

substantial and solid structure with no evidence to suggest it is 

structurally unsound.   As evidenced with other listed outbuildings 

around the District, there are very few that are incapable of being 

converted. 

 

Therefore, the applicant has not provided sufficient evidence and 

justification that outweighs the harm to this outbuilding, the 

principal listed building and its setting, and appearance and setting of 

the conservation area 

 

Furthermore, the proposed structure with extension that extends 

outwards into the current open and characterful courtyard is 

incongruous and it will not respect the historic curtilage, context 

and setting of the heritage assets, including its historic townscape 

context.  And, the proposed form and layout of the development 

will not respect and build on the pre-existing historic character (and 

building layout). 

 

Notwithstanding, the demolition of this interesting and characterful 

building represents the loss of a vernacular outbuilding that 

delineates and provides historic and architectural context to its 

relationship to former Bull Inn and Brewery.  And, its loss would 

have a deleterious impact, and result in the erosion of the 

character, appearance and setting of all the heritage assets 

identified. 

 

Recommendations: Refusal, it does not preserve the character, 

appearance and setting of the heritage assets identified. 

 

  

 

Reasons:  Contrary to policies EH9, EH10, EH11, EH13 OS4, NPPF 

2021, and WODC Design Guidance and Witney & Cogges 

Conservation Area Appraisal 

 

 

Page 45



Parish Council  While Witney Town Council does not object to this application in 

terms of a new dwelling, it notes that Councillors express concern 

for limited cycle and bin storage on the site. Members ask that all 

efforts are made to provide cycle storage adequate for a family 

home and bin storage sufficient for the multiple waste bin types. 

 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No representations have been received. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 A planning support statement has been submitted which incorporates a Heritage Impact Assessment 

ad Design and Access Statement. This document is available on the Council's website. The statements 

have been summarised and concluded as follows: 

 

Listed Building Consent and Planning Permission has been submitted for the demolition and rebuilding, 

in an extended form, of an outbuilding to the rear of 46 Market Street, Witney, to provide a three 

bedroomed house. The proposal would lead to less than substantial harm to the setting of the listed 

former Bull Inn, but that the public benefits of the proposal would be to provide a new family house in a 

highly sustainable location in the centre of Witney and put this part of the curtilage of the listed building, 

in a modified form, back into an optimum viable use. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

NPPF 2021 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information and Proposed Development 

 

5.1 The application seeks listed building consent for the demolition and rebuilding, in an extended form, 

of an outbuilding to the rear of 46 Market Street, Witney, to provide a three bedroomed house with 

associated amenity area and two car parking spaces. 

 

5.2 The application site relates to an outbuilding known as Long Barn located to the rear, and within the 

curtilage of no.46 Market Square, Witney, a Grade II listed building (list entry 1213490). No. 46 was 

formerly known as Bull Inn and dates from early-mid C18 with C19 alterations.  The Bull Inn stated to 

be brewery tap to Clinch and Co Brewery, the original owners and occupiers of what is now the 

Wychwood Brewery. Long Barn is curtilage listed, locally listed and falls within the Witney & Cogges 

Conservation Area. The building is a long linear free standing building running parallel to the entrance 

road of the Eagle Industrial Estate from Market Square. The ground floor of 46 Market Square is 

occupied in part by Church Green Books and by the offices of Dana Care, the upper floors of the 

building and its attached outbuildings are used as offices. The outbuilding which is the subject of this 

application has been split into three units and is used for storage, as a workshop and an office. 

 

Page 46



5.3 Your officers were unable to find any planning history specifically relating to the outbuilding which is 

the subject of this application. However, the from the Heritage Statement provided and the consultation 

comments received from your Listed Building and Conservation Officers, it is believed that the 

outbuilding was possibly a cartshed or similar with a historic association to the former Bull Inn and was 

converted to offices in the late 1970's. 

 

5.4 The application has been brought before Members of the Lowlands Sub Planning Committee as your 

officers recommendation is contrary to the Town Council. 

 

5.5 Amended drawings have been submitted as part of this application following the Town Councils 

concerns regarding the lack of cycle and bin storage. 

 

Proposed Development 

 

5.6 Proposed is to demolish all of the existing single storey barn apart form a small section to the west 

which is not within the applicants ownership. The stone from the existing walls and the concrete tiles 

from the roof will be reused to construct a one and half storey 3-bedroom house. The proposed 

dwelling is to be situated on the footprint of Long Barn and has a cross gable section which extends out 

across an existing car parking area, the proposed dwelling is 1.55m taller at eaves level and 1.73m taller 

at ridge level than the existing Long Barn. The proposed dwelling has three high level windows and six 

roof lights on its southern elevation which faces Eagle Industrial Estate, it has three windows and two 

doors at ground floor level and two dormer windows, a roof light, and a window at first floor level on 

its northern elevation. The proposed dwelling also has bi folding doors and a Juliet balcony on its 

western elevation and two doors and two windows at ground floor level and a dormer window and a 

window at first floor level on its eastern elevation. The proposed materials are natural stone, clay tiles, 

double glazed wooden windows and doors and an aluminium bi folding door. The proposed dwelling 

would also have associated outdoor amenity space in the form of a patio within an enclosed courtyard 

space. Two parking spaces are proposed and bin and cycle storage.  

 

5.7 The considerations of this application are the impacts that the proposed development will have on 

Heritage Assets.   

 

Design and Impact on Heritage Assets 

 

5.8 Long Barn is a grade II curtilage listed building in association with no.46 Market Square, Witney. 

There are also listed buildings to the north and the south of Long Barn. This proposal is to demolish 

Long Barn almost in its entirety. Whilst Long Barn is curtilage listed it should be treated as any other 

grade II listed building as stated within Paragraph: 044 Reference ID: 18a-044-20190723 of government 

planning guidance, all grades of listed building, unless the list entry indicates otherwise, the listing status covers 

the entire building, internal and external, and may cover objects fixed to it, and also curtilage buildings or other 

structures. 

 

5.9 The Local Planning Authority is therefore statutorily required to have special regard to the 

desirability of preserving the building, its setting, and any features of special architectural or historic 

interest it may possess, in accordance with Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Building and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

 

Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in determining applications, 

local planning authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining or enhancing the 

significance of heritage assets. In particular, paragraph 199 states that when considering the impact of a 

Page 47



proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset - such as a Listed Building, or 

Conservation Area - great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more important 

the asset, the greater the weight should be). Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated 

heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require 

clear and convincing justification (paragraph 200). Paragraph 202 states that where a development 

proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this 

harm should harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, where appropriate, 

securing its optimal viable use.  

 

5.10 In order to consider the effect of a scheme on the significance of the listed building, there is a need 

to identify that significance. In this instance, it is the buildings distinguishable architectural characteristics 

that relay its significance and context as an outbuilding, possibly cartshed or similar with a historic 

association to the former Bull Inn, its age, form and prominent location within the conservation area.  

 

5.11 The demolition of this interesting and characterful building would result in the complete loss of a 

heritage asset. Paragraph 201 of the NPPF states that if a development results in the total loss of 

significance of a designated heritage asset that the local planning authority should refuse consent, unless 

it can be demonstrated that the total loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that 

outweigh that loss. Paragraph 200 states that any loss of a heritage asset should require clear and 

convincing justification and when the development includes the loss of a listed building the justification 

should be exceptional. The applicant's heritage statement and justification for demolition of this building 

is considered to be inadequate, stating that the building: 'has no damp proof course to the stone walls 

and little insulation to its walls or floors and would require extensive and substantial works to meet 

both current Building Regulation requirements and to obtain the requisite Commercial Energy 

Performance Certificates, and that a new building on the same footprint would achieve an optimum 

viable use'. However, there is no evidence submitted to suggest that this historic outbuilding is incapable 

of conversion, is at risk in its current condition, or incapable of having an optimum viable use in its 

current status.  Furthermore, the building appears to be a substantial and solid structure with no 

evidence to suggest it is structurally unsound. Therefore, the applicant has not provided sufficient 

evidence and justification for the proposed development that outweighs the complete loss of this listed 

building. 

 

5.12 In addition, the loss of a vernacular outbuilding that delineates and provides historic and 

architectural context to its relationship to former Bull Inn and Brewery will have a harmful impact on 

the setting of the principal listing building. The proposed dwelling is larger in scale in terms of its 

footprint, height and volume, its existing linear plan form is also to be changed and the character of the 

building will be completely lost by the associated domestication such as the additional windows, doors 

and balcony, as a result of the use change. The proposed extension into the characterful courtyard is 

incongruous and it will not respect the historic curtilage, context and setting of the heritage assets, 

including its historic townscape context. The proposed form and layout of the development will not 

respect and build on the pre-existing historic character (and building layout). Therefore, the loss of Long 

Barn would have a deleterious impact, and result in the erosion of the character, appearance and setting 

of the principal listed building and neighbouring listed buildings. 

 

5.13 The proposals in this application will result in the complete loss of a grade II listed building and will 

cause harm to the significance of the principal listed building and its setting, this harm is identified as 

being 'less than substantial'. As such, Paragraph 202 of the NPPF directs decision makers to weigh that 

harm against the public benefits of the proposal, including, where appropriate, securing its optimum 

viable use. The building appears to be in a good condition and its ongoing use as an office, workshop and 

storage space would not be affected by this refusal. Officers note that the proposed development would 

Page 48



result in some benefits, these include, minor economic benefits from the construction phase, however 

these are minor and short term. The main benefit of this proposal is that it would create an additional 

three bedroom residential dwelling within a sustainable location, which would help with the need for 

additional housing. However, your officers are satisfied that any public benefits arising from the scheme 

are outweighed by the total loss of a grade II listed building and the harm caused to the appearance and 

setting of the principal listed building. 

 

For the above reasons it is considered that the scheme would result in the loss of a listed building which 

would harm the setting of 43 Market Square and the neighbouring listed buildings. The significance of 

Long Barn as a designated heritage asset would be diminished, and without public benefit that would 

outweigh the total loss of a listed building and the less than substantial harm caused to the principal 

listed building. The proposal is therefore judged to be contrary to the duty to Section 16 of the NPPF 

and Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.14 For the reasons outlined above, the scheme would fail to preserve the curtilage listed building, its 

features, its significance and the setting of 43 Market Square and the neighbouring listed buildings. 

Consequently, the significance of Long Barn as a designated heritage asset would be diminished, and 

without public benefit that would outweigh the less than substantial harm caused. The proposal is 

therefore judged to be contrary to the duty to Section 16 of the NPPF and Section 16(2) of the Planning 

(Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

 

 

5.15 In light of the above, the application is recommended for refusal. 

 

 

6 REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 

1 The proposal will result in the complete loss of a grade II curtilage listed building and by reason of 

the proposed demolition of this building and the scale, siting and design of the proposed building, 

the proposal will cause harm to the significance of the principal listed building and its setting, this 

harm is identified as being 'less than substantial'. The loss of the heritage asset and the less than 

substantial harm which would result from the development proposed, would not be outweighed by 

any discernible public benefits. Furthermore, no clear or convincing justification has been submitted 

to demonstrate that the optimal use of the heritage asset is a risk. Consequently, the proposal is 

contrary to the duty to Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 

1990 and Section 16 of the NPPF. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Esther Hill 

Telephone Number: 01993 861690 

Date: 5th April 2022 

  

Page 49



Application Number 21/03720/FUL 

Site Address 44 Common Road 

North Leigh 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 6RB 

 

Date 5th April 2022 

Officer David Ditchett 

Officer Recommendations Provisional Approval 

Parish North Leigh Parish Council 

Grid Reference 438532 E       212493 N 

Committee Date 19th April 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

Application Details: 

Demolition of existing residential property. The erection of 10 detached and semi detached two storey 

dwellings and construction of a new access onto Common Road, with associated garaging and parking, 

landscaping and all enabling works 

 

Page 50



Applicant Details: 

Mr Tim Northey 

Market House 

Silver Street 

Olney 

MK46 4AL 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council  The applicant argues that objections raised against previously 

refused application 21/02900/FUL have been fully met. This is not 

the case.  

 

Housing developments totalling 175 units have been or are being 

erected in North Leigh village, thus satisfying the need for housing in 

this medium sized village. The proposal is for a further 10 units and 

will further impact on village facilities and harm the character of the 

area. This is contrary to Policy OS2 of the Local Plan. 2031.  

 

The proposed density of units at 20 per hectare may be appropriate 

for urban developments, but is inappropriate for and harmful to the 

character of the village. This is contrary to Policy OS4 of the Local 

Plan.  

 

Whilst the new proposal now includes 2 affordable units, the mix of 

units consists eight 3-bed units and two 4-bed units and does not 

include any 2-bed units. This is contrary to Policy H4 of the Local 

Plan.  

 

During 2021 numerous problems with foul water and sewage 

leakages have occurred on Common Road close to the proposed 

site resulting in emergency call-out of Thames Water repair crews. 

The applicant has not consulted Thames Water and has not drawn 

up an appropriate foul water drainage plan. This is contrary OS4 of 

the Local Plan.  

 

Should the application be approved and without prejudice to our 

objections, the Parish Council require the following conditions to be 

attached;  

 

a) demolition and construction equipment and vehicles shall be used 

and parked only on the site to avoid damage to and obstruction of 

that part of Common Road  

b) all vehicles leaving the site to be subject to fully automated wheel 

washing facilities to prevent mud and construction debris being 

carried on to Common Road.  

 

Also, without prejudice to our objections and pending the 

introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), the Parish 

Page 51



Council require the following compensation in mitigation of the 

social impact of the development on the village;  

 

a) the A4095/Common Road junction verges to be landscaped in 

consultation with the Parish Council and maintained by the applicant 

for a period of 25 years.  

b) a financial contribution be made to a new cycle track between 

Common Road and Park Road junctions of the A4095  

c) an appropriate traffic calming scheme be installed on Common 

Road. 

 

 

WODC Housing Enabler  22.02.2022 

Having had the opportunity to review the revised application I am 

able to make comments from an affordable housing point of view.  

 

Policy H3 in the West Oxfordshire District Council Local Plan 2018 

requires housing schemes of 11 or more units or which have a 

maximum combined gross floor space of more than 1000m2 to 

provide affordable housing on site.  

 

North Leigh is in the medium value zone. The on-site requirement 

for affordable housing on schemes in the medium value zone is 40%.  

 

The proposed development has a combined gross floor space 

including garages of more than 1000m2 (including netting off the 

existing bungalow to be demolished) and should therefore be 

required to provide 40% affordable housing in accordance with 

Policy H3. 

 

 

WODC - Sports  No Comment Received. 

 

 

WODC Planning Policy 

Manager 

 No Comment Received. 

 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

 17.12.2021 

Waste Management - no objection subject to legal agreement 

securing S106 contributions 

 

Highways - no objection subject to  

- S106 Contributions  

- An obligation to enter into a [S278] [/S38] agreement  

- Planning Conditions  

- Informatives 

 

Lead Local Flood Authority - objects  

- drainage strategy proposed must be in line with latest 

national and local guidance 

Page 52



- detailed surface water management strategy must be 

submitted in accordance with the Local Standards and Guidance for 

Surface Water Drainage on Major Development in Oxfordshire 

 

 

District Ecologist  No objection subject to conditions and informatives 

 

 

Thames Water  Waste Comments 

We would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures will 

be undertaken to minimise groundwater discharges into the public 

sewer.  Groundwater discharges typically result from construction 

site dewatering, deep excavations, basement infiltration, borehole 

installation, testing and site remediation.  Any discharge made 

without a permit is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution 

under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991. Should the 

Local Planning Authority be minded to approve the planning 

application, Thames Water would like the following informative 

attached to the planning permission: "A Groundwater Risk 

Management Permit from Thames Water will be required for 

discharging groundwater into a public sewer.  Any discharge made 

without a permit is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution 

under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991.  We would 

expect the developer to demonstrate what measures he will 

undertake to minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer.  

Permit enquiries should be directed to Thames Water's Risk 

Management Team by telephoning 020 3577 9483 or by emailing 

trade.effluent@thameswater.co.uk .  Application forms should be 

completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk.  Please refer to the 

Wholsesale; Business customers; Groundwater discharges section. 

 

With regard to SURFACE WATER drainage, Thames Water would 

advise that if the developer follows the sequential approach to the 

disposal of surface water we would have no objection. Management 

of surface water from new developments should follow guidance 

under sections 167 & 168 in the National Planning Policy Framework.  

Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior 

approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required. 

Should you require further information please refer to our website. 

https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-

and-pay-for-services/Wastewater-services. 

 

Thames Water would advise that with regard to WASTE WATER 

NETWORK and SEWAGE TREATMENT WORKS infrastructure 

capacity, we would not have any objection to the above planning 

application, based on the information provided. 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



Water Comments 

If you are planning on using mains water for construction purposes, 

it's important you let Thames Water know before you start using it, 

to avoid potential fines for improper usage. More information and 

how to apply can be found online at 

thameswater.co.uk/buildingwater. 

 

On the basis of information provided, Thames Water would advise 

that with regard to water network and water treatment 

infrastructure capacity, we would not have any objection to the 

above planning application. Thames Water recommends the 

following informative be attached to this planning permission. 

Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum 

pressure of 10m head (approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 

litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. The 

developer should take account of this minimum pressure in the 

design of the proposed development. 

 

 

Conservation Officer  No Comment Received. 

 

 

Wychwood Project  No Comment Received. 

 

 

ERS Env. Consultation Sites  06.12.2021 

Thank you for consulting our team, I have looked at the application 

in relation to contaminated land and potential risk to human health.  

 

Please consider adding the following condition to any grant of 

permission.  

 

1. In the event that contamination is found at any time when 

carrying out the approved development, it must be reported in 

writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An 

investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance 

with the requirements of Environment Agency's Model Procedures 

for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11, and where 

remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, 

to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 

removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other 

property, and which is subject to the approval in writing of the 

Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of 

the amenity. 

Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and 

Section 15 of the NPPF 

 

 

Page 54



WODC Env Health - Lowlands  14.12.2021 

Thank you for the opportunity to consult. 

 

I have reviewed the application and I, do not consider road traffic 

noise to be a constraint for this site. 

 

The Design and Build of the new dwellings should fully satisfy the 

Internal room sound levels for comfort as prescribed by British 

Standards 8233:2014 Guidance on Sound Insulation and Noise 

Reduction for Buildings.  

 

I would suggest the following conditions:- 

 

1. The dwellings hereby approved shall be designed and constructed 

to incorporate measures to ensure that as a minimum, they achieve 

the internal and external ambient noise levels contained in British 

Standard 8233:2014 Guidance for Sound Insulation and Noise 

Reduction for Buildings (or later versions).  

 

2. Prior to work commencing on the site, an Environmental 

Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. The Environmental Management Plan 

shall include the following details: 

 

' Development contacts, roles and responsibilities  

' Public communication strategy, including a complaints procedure. 

' Dust suppression, mitigation and avoidance measures. 

' Noise reduction measures, including use of acoustic screens and 

enclosures, the type of  

 equipment to be used and their hours of operation. 

' Use of fences and barriers to protect adjacent land, properties, 

footpaths and highways. 

' Details of parking and traffic management measures. 

' Avoidance of light spill and glare from any floodlighting and security 

lighting installed. 

' Wheel washing facilities 

 

Informative:- 

The Acoustics Ventilation and Overheating Residential Design 

Guide. Version 1.0 (Jan 2020) provides current additional valuable 

guidance. 

 

 

 

 

OCC Lead Local Flood 

Authority 

 10.03.2022 

Objects - technical reasons set out in online comment 

 

 

Page 55



OCC Lead Local Flood 

Authority 

 07.02.2022 

Objection - Generally we don't have an objection to the SuDS 

design principles. However, additional and corrected information 

should be provided for the LLFA to be able to fully review. 

 

 

WODC Housing Enabler  04.04.2022 

Information from our choice based lettings system for those 

qualifying to rent affordable housing and indicating North Leigh as 

one of their areas of preference.  

 

Applicants can identify up to three locations when selecting their 

areas of preference. 

 

1 Bed single 49 

1 Bed Couple 13 

2 Bed 41 

3 Bed 11 

4+ Bed 5 

Total 119 

     

The Homeseeker + priority bandings that these 119 applicants fall 

under are as follows: 

 

Emergency 0 

Gold  1 

Silver   22 

Bronze 96 

Total 119 

 

These bands are broadly explained as:  

Emergency = Is in immediate need of re-housing on medical grounds 

or down-sizing etc 

Gold = Has an urgent medical / welfare need / move due major 

overcrowding etc 

Silver = Significant medical or welfare needs that would be alleviated 

by a move 

Bronze = All other applicants not falling into the above categories 

 

In addition to these 119 applicants there are a further 2426 

applicants on the wider district waiting list that could benefit from 

the development of affordable housing. 

 

 

ERS Env. Consultation Sites  18.01.2022 

I am just going through some of the planning applications on the 

planning portal and have seen the above referenced application. I 

think that my colleague may have responded to the "ERS Env. 

Consultation Sites" consultation which is for contamination in error. 

 

Page 56



I see that this application is similar to a previous application 

(21/02900/FUL) for which I submitted the following comments. 

These 

comments remain applicable for the new application.  

 

Thank you for consulting our team. I have considered the 

application in relation to contaminated land and potential risk to 

human health. From the information submitted with the application 

it is understood that the development site currently comprises a 

road, single story dwelling, associated garden area including a 

number of outbuildings and a paddock with more outbuildings. 

Photographs of the site suggest there may be some areas where 

rubbish has been piled up. I have no major concerns in relation to 

the proposed development and the site, however, given the number 

of outbuildings and the piles of rubbish on site please could the 

applicant confirm the following;  

 

- That no fuels or other potentially contaminating substances have 

been stored at the site.  

- That the rubbish piles on site have been placed there by the 

owner of the site and are not fly tipped material. If the piles have 

been placed by the owner please could they confirm that there are 

no potentially contaminating substances within the stockpile. For 

example asbestos containing material, drums of fuel or batteries.  

 

Depending on the answers to these questions I would likely request 

the following condition be added to any grant of permission.  

 

1. In the event that contamination is found at any time when 

carrying out the approved development, it must be reported in 

writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An 

investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance 

with the requirements of Environment Agency's Model Procedures 

for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11, and where 

remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, 

to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 

removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other 

property, and which is subject to the approval in writing of the 

Local Planning Authority.  

 

2. Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the 

interests of the amenity. Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local 

Planning Policy EH8 and Section 15 of the NPPF 

 

 

ERS Env. Consultation Sites  24.01.2022 

I have received the email below from the applicant and based on the 

information they have provided request that the following condition 

be added to any grant of permission.  

 

Page 57



1. In the event that contamination is found at any time when 

carrying out the approved development, it must be reported in 

writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An 

investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance 

with the requirements of Environment Agency's Model Procedures 

for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11, and where 

remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, 

to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 

removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other 

property, and which is subject to the approval in writing of the 

Local Planning Authority.  

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of 

the amenity. Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning 

Policy EH8 and Section 15 of the NPPF 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 A summary of the representations received are detailed below. Full details can be found on the 

Council's website. 

 

42 third party objections received relating to:  

 

1. Same as previous application that was refused; 

2. Houses close to No 46 Common Road; 

3. No need for homes; 

4. 176 houses approved for development in the village in the last 2 or 3 years; 

5. Increase traffic congestion; 

6. Isolated from services and facilities; 

7. Loss of local services; 

8. Loss of biodiversity; 

9. Pressure on water system; 

10. Challenge existing infrastructure; 

11. Impact to residential amenity; 

12. Too many houses already being built in the village; 

13. Overdevelopment; 

14. Poor quality homes; 

15. Out of character; 

16. Increase traffic speeding; 

17. School at capacity; 

18. Lack of site notice; 

19. North Leigh needs to remain a smaller town; 

20. Inadequate sewer system; 

21. Thames Water often visit area to fix issues; 

22. Drainage; 

23. Existing services are stretched; 

24. Highway safety, especially at school times; 

25. Impact to local wildlife; 

26. No affordable housing; 

Page 58



27. Not an allocated housing site; 

28. Overbearing; 

29. harm the character and appearance of the village; 

30. Power outages; 

31. Loss of green field; 

32. Development should be on a brownfield site; 

33. No social benefits; 

34. Design, scale, form and layout of the proposal would not complement the existing pattern and 

character of the houses down the road; 

35. The close proximity of plots 1, 3 and 10 to existing houses is overbearing and will harm the 

enjoyment of their gardens and privacy in their homes; 

36. Reliant on cars; 

37. Traffic noise and pollution for No 42; 

38. Loss of trees and hedges; 

39. Impact to amphibians; 

40. Water system cannot cope with more houses; 

41. Landscape harm; 

42. Flooding; 

43. Village is overpopulated; 

44. Pollution; 

45. Risk to pedestrians; 

46. Impact to birds roosting; 

47. Impact of building work; 

48. Loss of privacy; 

49. Poor parking provision; 

50. Outlook from side window blocked; 

51. Not previously developed land; 

52. Excessive density; 

53. Design; 

54. Scale; 

55. Trees felled on site; and 

56. Not sustainable development.  

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The supporting Planning Statement summarises their case as follows: 

 

3.2 The application site mainly comprises previously developed land within North Leigh where the 

principle of residential development is already established, with the remaining land area undeveloped 

land immediately adjoining the settlement edge. It is sustainably located as has been established in a 

number of recent significant planning decisions at the village. 

 

3.3 This revised application has fully considered the previous reasons for refusal with updated and 

additional supporting information to address these concerns. This includes a LVTN which robustly 

demonstrates that the application forms a logical development that can be integrated without significant 

harm to the character and appearance of the area. 

 

3.4 This high quality residential development will make more efficient use of a previously developed 

land resource and increase housing supply in an area with a significant housing affordability issue. It will 

Page 59



also deliver a number of new 3 bed properties including affordable units, which are identified by the 

Council as the type of housing in greatest need in the district. 

 

3.5 The applicant has also identified a housing land supply deficit in the district as a number of 

identified sites will clearly not be delivered within the 5 year period claimed by the Council. 

Consequently, the provisions of Paragraph 11(d) are triggered meaning the Council's housing policies 

are considered out of date and the 'tilted balance' applies. 

 

3.6 In weighing up this application, paragraph 8 of the NPPF refers to three mutually dependent 

dimensions of sustainable development: economic, social and environmental. In terms of its identifiable 

benefits, the construction of the proposed houses will provide a source of employment in the short 

term which is important at this time of needing to increase economic activity. Once built, the resultant 

increase in population will serve to increase the level of expenditure in the local economy helping with 

the vitality of local services. These economic benefits will be of modest positive weight. 

 

3.7 The proposal will make a contribution towards boosting the supply of housing in an area with a 

significant housing affordability issue, including smaller family housing for which there is a very significant 

need in the district. It will also provide much needed affordable housing. Significant positive weight 

should be attributed to these social benefits. 

 

3.8 If permitted, this proposal will involve the more efficient use of a previously developed land 

resource and reduce the need for land release elsewhere in the district of higher environmental quality. 

The implementation of the proposed soft landscape proposals and integrated new habitat opportunities, 

plus offsite contribution to secure a biodiversity net gain, will deliver environmental benefits from the 

development. These environmental benefits will be of modest positive weight and creating greater 

biodiversity. 

 

3.9 The loss of a limited area of agricultural land will be of modest negative weight, when combined 

with the change in character of this part of the site. However, the site is of no recognised landscape 

quality and there are no public views into or out of this part of the site, ensuring no discernible impact 

upon the character of the area. 

 

3.10 In conclusion, the limited adverse impact of the proposal would not significantly or 

demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies of the framework as a whole. 

The tilted balance applies in this instance and the planning balance favours a grant of planning permission 

without further delay. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

H1NEW Amount and distribution of housing 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

H3NEW Affordable Housing 

H4NEW Type and mix of new homes 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

OS5NEW Supporting infrastructure 

EH2 Landscape character 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

Page 60



EH4 Public realm and green infrastructure 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH8 Environmental protection 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T2NEW Highway improvement schemes 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

T4NEW Parking provision 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2021 

NATDES National Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 The applicant seeks planning permission for the demolition of existing residential property. The 

erection of 10 detached and semi detached two storey dwellings and construction of a new access onto 

Common Road, with associated garaging and parking, landscaping and all enabling works. 

 

5.2 The site is accessed by an existing access serving the domestic curtilage and beyond into the 

paddock to the rear of the site.  There are a number of outbuildings which appear to have been 

associated with the dwelling, albeit not within an established domestic curtilage. 

 

5.3 An application for the construction of five detached dwellings and garages. Close existing and 

formation of new vehicular access in revised position was refused permission in November 2018 (Ref: 

18/02932/FUL) for the following reasons: 

 

1. The proposal is for housing development on a predominantly greenfield site on the edge of the settlement of 

North Leigh. The development is not required to meet Local Plan housing requirements and would not constitute 

an acceptable windfall opportunity in the context of the location, site characteristics, and a very low 5 year 

windfall allowance. The design (including materials), scale, form and siting  of the proposal would not form a 

logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development in this location, it would fail to protect or 

enhance the local landscape and the setting of the village, and would fail to conserve the natural environment. 

There would therefore be an unacceptably harmful impact on the character and appearance of the area. There 

are no material considerations that indicate that the development plan should not be followed. The proposal is 

thus contrary to West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 Policies H2, EH2, OS2 and OS4, and paragraphs 12, 127, 

and 170 of the NPPF. 

 

2. By reason of the siting of plots 4 and 5 in particular, close to the boundaries with existing properties, the 

proposed dwellings will appear overbearing and result in overlooking from the first floor of Plot 4 and the ground 

floor of Plots, 1, 2, 4 and 5 and the access road due to insufficient boundary treatment to the detriment of the 

residential amenity of the adjacent occupiers.  As such, the proposal is considered contrary to adopted West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan Policies OS2, H2 and OS4, and the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF.  

 

5.4 A further application (ref. 20/02900/FUL) was refused in March 2021 for the following reasons:  

 

 1. The proposal is for housing development on a predominantly greenfield site on the edge of the settlement of 

North Leigh. The development is not required to meet Local Plan housing requirements and would not constitute 

an acceptable windfall opportunity in the context of the location and site characteristics. The design, scale, form 

and layout of the proposal would not form a logical complement to the existing scale, pattern and character of 

development in this location, it would fail to protect or enhance the local landscape and the setting of the village, 

Page 61



and would fail to conserve the natural environment. There would therefore be an unacceptably harmful impact 

on the character and appearance of the area. There are no material considerations that indicate that the 

development plan should not be followed. The proposal is thus contrary to West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 

Policies H2, EH2, OS2 and OS4, West Oxfordshire Design Guide, National Design Guide and the NPPF. 

 

2. The proposed development fails to provide affordable housing and a mix of property types and sizes in conflict 

with Policies H3 and H4 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, National Design Guide and the NPPF. 

 

3. The proposed development fails to provide an acceptable SuDS solution in line with Local and National 

Standards and water quality standards are not met. In addition no water quality assessment has been carried 

out. As such the proposed development conflicts with Policies EH7 and EH8 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 

2031and the NPPF. 

 

4. There is inadequate information relating to biodiversity net gain (BNG) and the proposal fails to demonstrate 

that a BNG can be provided on site. As such the proposal is contrary to Local Plan policy EH3 and the NPPF. 

 

5. The applicant has not entered into a legal agreement to secure a contribution towards necessary infrastructure 

including sports and recreation and play facilities, highway works and improved public transport required to offset 

the burden on local infrastructure that would otherwise result from the proposed development. The local planning 

authority cannot therefore be satisfied that the impacts of the development can be made acceptable. 

Consequently, the proposal conflicts with Policies OS5 and T3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031and the 

NPPF.  

 

5.5 The adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan identifies North Leigh as a Village wherein new 

development is acceptable in certain circumstances.  The site is part existing bungalow set in its 

domestic curtilage and part undeveloped paddock area and agricultural field. 

 

5.6 The site is bounded to the north by the rear gardens of properties fronting Common Close and 

the rear gardens of Nos 38, 40 and 42 Common Road forming the eastern boundary. 

 

5.7 The site is not within the Cotswolds AONB, Conservation Area or any other designated area.  

 

5.8 The site is wholly within flood zone 1.  

 

5.9 The application is before Committee as the Parish Council have objected to the proposal.  

 

5.10 Taking into account planning policy, previous applications, other material considerations and the 

representations of interested parties, officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the 

application are: 

 

Principle of Development; 

Siting, Design and Form; 

Highway Safety; 

Drainage and Flood Risk; 

Trees and Ecology; 

Residential Amenities; 

S106 matters; and 

Conclusion (including previous refusal reasons) and Planning Balance 

 

 

Page 62



Principle of Development 

 

5.11 Policy OS2 sets out the overall strategy on the location of development for the District. It 

adopts a hierarchal approach, with the majority of new development focused on the main service 

centres of Witney, Carterton and Chipping Norton, followed by the rural service centres of Bampton, 

Burford, Charlbury, Eynsham, Long Hanborough, Woodstock and the new Oxfordshire Cotswolds 

Garden Village (now referred to as Salt Cross).  

 

5.12 North Leigh is identified as a 'village' in the settlement hierarchy of the Local Plan and policy 

OS2 states 'the villages are suitable for limited development which respects the village character and 

local distinctiveness and would help to maintain the vitality of these communities'. 

 

5.13 Local Plan Policy H2 states 'new dwellings will be permitted at the main service centres, rural 

service centres and villages in the following circumstances……. 

 

- On previously developed land within or adjoining the built up area provided the loss of any 

existing use would not conflict with other plan policies and the proposal complies with the general 

principles set out in Policy OS2 and any other relevant policies in this plan; 

- On undeveloped land within the built up area provided that the proposal is in accordance with 

the other policies in the plan and in particular the general principles in Policy OS2; 

- On undeveloped land adjoining the built up area where convincing evidence is presented to 

demonstrate that it is necessary to meet identified housing needs, it is in accordance with the 

distribution of housing set out in Policy H1 and is in accordance with other policies in the plan in 

particular the general principles in Policy OS2.' 

 

5.14 The existing dwelling and its garden is considered to be previously developed land (also known 

as brownfield land). New development is therefore supported in principle in this area by Policy H2. In 

addition, paragraph 120 (c) of the NPPF states 'planning policies and decisions should….. give substantial 

weight to the value of using suitable brownfield land within settlements for homes and other identified 

needs'. 

 

5.15 The additional land forming the proposed development site would be described as undeveloped 

land adjoining the built up area and in this instance, Local Plan Policy H2 requires convincing evidence to 

demonstrate the site is necessary to meet an identified housing need. The assessment for the previously 

refused application at the site in March 2021 noted that 'no such evidence has been provided'.   

 

5.16 It is vital that Local Planning Authorities issue consistent decisions, particularly for similar 

development proposals on the same site. The background to this site is that 10 homes were refused on 

this site for several reasons (as stated above) in March 2021. Therefore, a material change must occur 

that would warrant the LPA coming to a different conclusion than the previous refusal.  

 

5.17 Policy H3 of the Local Plan requires the provision of affordable housing on schemes of 11 or 

more units or which have a maximum combined gross floor space of more than 1000sqm.  Whilst the 

previous application at the site (ref. 20/02900/FUL) only provided a net increase of 9 units, it would have 

exceeded the 1000sqm floor space requirement and as such affordable housing should have been 

provided. However, no affordable housing was provided. Indeed, the lack of affordable housing was 

discussed within the previous Officer Report and ultimately formed part of refusal reasons 1 and 2. 

 

5.18 The current scheme proposes approximately 989sqm of dwelling floorspace and approximately 

74sqm of carport floorspace.  The existing dwelling to be demolished is approximately 70sqm. The net 

Page 63



increase of floorspace on site therefore (when subtracting the existing dwelling) is approximately 

993sqm. While there is some debate as to whether carports contribute towards the floorspace 

calculation when assessing affordable housing contributions, the above has shown that should carports 

be included, or not, the scheme still proposes less than 1000sqm of new floorspace.   

 

5.19 Therefore, the provision of affordable housing is not required to meet Policy H3. However, as 

part of the development site is on undeveloped land adjoining the built up area, Policy H2 requires 

convincing evidence to demonstrate that new housing is necessary to meet identified housing needs. Of 

note is that the applicant now proposes two affordable homes as part of this application. As such, floor 

space is reduced from the previous scheme and two affordable homes are now provided. These are 

material changes from the previous refusal.  

 

5.20 The Councils Housing Enabler Officer states that as of 04/04/2022, 119 applicants were 

registered on the Council's Homeseeker+ system to rent a home in North Leigh. In addition to these 

119 applicants there are a further 2426 applicants on the wider district waiting list that could benefit 

from the development of affordable housing. It is clear that there is a need for affordable housing in 

North Leigh and the wider district. 

 

5.21 In terms of the Councils land supply position. The Council has recently undertaken a review of 

the current situation (December 2021) and concludes it has a 5.3 year supply. Footnote 8 and Paragraph 

11 of the NPPF are not therefore triggered; the local plan policies which are most important for 

determining the application are not out-of-date and can be afforded full weight.  Furthermore, the 

Housing Delivery Test (updated 14 January 2022) found from 2018-2021 West Oxfordshire required 

1420 homes and delivered 2767. A Housing Delivery Test 2021 measurement of 195%. While WODC 

can demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing land, this is not a supply ceiling and officers are 

mindful of the Government's objective of significantly boosting the supply of homes (paragraph 60 of the 

NPPF).  

 

5.22 In light of the discussion above, officers are satisfied that convincing evidence has been 

presented to demonstrate that there is a need for housing in this location. Furthermore, while a net 

increase of 9 homes in this location would not significantly boost the supply of homes. It would 

nonetheless make a contribution.  

 

5.23 Notwithstanding the above assessment, the proposal shall be assessed against the Local Plan as a 

whole and in particular the general principles of Policy OS2 in more detail below. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.24 Paragraph 130 of the NPPF is clear that development proposals should function well and add to 

the overall quality of the area; are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and 

appropriate and effective landscaping; are sympathetic to local character and history including the 

surrounding built environment and landscape setting and create places that are safe, inclusive and 

accessible and have a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.   

 

5.25 Policies OS2 (Locating development in the right places), OS4 (High quality design) and EH2 

(Landscape character) each require the character of the area to be respected and enhanced. The 

importance of achieving high quality design is reinforced in the National Design Guide.  

 

Page 64



5.26 Officers considered that the design, scale, form and layout of the previous scheme would not 

form a logical complement to the existing scale, pattern and character of development in this location. 

This formed part of refusal reason 1 of application ref. 20/02900/FUL.  

 

5.27 When comparing the previously refused scheme to the current proposal. The proposed 

development still amounts to a backland form of development with eight of the new dwellings located to 

the rear of properties fronting onto Common Road. Six of the dwellings would still be large detached 

properties (plots 3, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10).  Plots 1 and 2; and plots 4 and 5 would still be semi-detached 

pairs. In addition, both the previously refused scheme and the current scheme propose the same mix of 

bedroom numbers (seven 3 bed homes and three 4 bed homes). As such, the conflict with Policy H4 

remains. Four homes are still proposed to the north of the site and the remaining six to the south. In 

terms of materials, these are proposed to be slate roofs, reconstituted stone walls, and timber windows 

and doors. Brick chimneys and timber porches are also proposed.  

 

5.28 There are some differences to the scale, footprint, orientation and design of the dwellings 

proposed when compared to the previous refusal. Particularly the detached dwellings. However, the 

siting, materials, pattern, and character of the overall development remains broadly the same as the 

previous refusal.  

 

5.29 In terms of major changes. All of the garages have been removed and four car ports are now 

proposed. Six plots will have no garaging/carports. In addition, only one vehicular entrance is now 

proposed to serve all the dwellings where the previous scheme had two vehicular entrances (one 

retained for plot 1 and the rest accessed by the new entrance). Plot 1 will have a separate pedestrian 

access.  

 

5.30 Common Road is characterised by its linear form of development along both sides of the road 

with Common Close located further to the north comprising a planned cul-de-sac form of development 

of uniform appearance.  Some other cul-de-sacs are also present to the north. This backland form of 

development proposed bears some resemblance to the cul-de-sacs to the north, however, it is 

proposed to extend into open countryside to the west, eroding the village setting. The development 

would be visible from Common Road and partially from the public rights of way to the west of the 

village.   

 

5.31 Most of the existing trees on the site are to be removed, although the submitted tree schedule 

indicates that all of the trees are defined as category C and of low overall quality.  Nevertheless, the loss 

of these trees would further expose the development and the expanding edge of North Leigh to views 

from the public right of way to the west. The roadside hedge is also proposed to be removed.   

 

5.32 Overall, there are insufficient differences in terms of the general design, scale, form, layout and 

landscape impacts that would warrant coming to a different conclusion then the previous refusal. As 

such, the proposed development conflicts with Local Plan Policies OS2 and OS4 in terms of the design, 

scale, form and layout of the proposed development and Policy EH2 as it would fail to protect or 

enhance the local landscape and the setting of the village. 

 

Highway Safety 

 

5.33 Highway safety did not form a refusal reason for the previous scheme. However, OCC 

Highways did initially object to the previous scheme as the Refuse Collection Vehicle (RCV) used in the 

swept path analysis was of insufficient size. That matter was dealt with during the previous application 

Page 65



and it was demonstrated that the swept path for the RCV is very tight within the turning head but the 

manoeuvre was possible.  

 

5.34 Notwithstanding that the previous scheme was acceptable in highway safety terms. Arguably, 

this scheme is an improvement when compared to the previous as two separate vehicular accesses were 

proposed. The existing access for the bungalow retained to serve plot 1 and the rest of the plots 

accessed by a new entrance. This would have led to a proliferation of accesses in close proximity to 

each other. As noted, only one access is now proposed, which is considered to be an improvement 

against the previous scheme in highway safety terms.  

 

5.35 OCC have no objections to the scheme subject to S106 contributions towards highway works 

and public transport infrastructure and highway conditions.  

 

5.36 The proposed development therefore is acceptable in highway safety terms and accords with 

policies T1, T2, and T3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and the NPPF. 

 

Drainage and Flood Risk 

 

5.37 Refusal reason 3 of the previous application stated 'the proposed development fails to provide 

an acceptable SuDS solution in line with Local and National Standards and water quality standards are 

not met'.  

 

5.38 The Lead Local Flood Authority objected to the previous scheme and they are also currently 

objecting to this scheme. However, in their comment dated 07/02/2022 they stated 'generally we don't 

have an objection to the SuDS design principles. However, additional and corrected information should 

be provided for the LLFA to be able to fully review'. Officers also note the number of comments 

received relating to foul drainage (sewerage) issues in the area. TWA have commented on this aspect of 

the scheme and are satisfied that there is capacity in the foul water sewerage network to accommodate 

the needs of the development. There are no objections in regards to foul drainage therefore.  The LLFA 

have also not raised water quality standards as a concern. 

 

5.39 The site is in flood zone 1 and is therefore at the lowest risk of flooding. Nonetheless, the 

proposed development must provide a detailed surface water management strategy in accordance with 

the Local Standards and Guidance for Surface Water Drainage on Major Development in Oxfordshire. 

The applicant has submitted additional information in relation to this and the LPA is awaiting the reply 

from the LLFA.  

 

5.40 Officers are satisfied that the proposed development will not increase flood risk at the site or 

elsewhere, subject to an acceptable drainage strategy being agreed and officers consider that this 

technical issue can be overcome. It may be that this is overcome prior to the application being heard at 

the April 19th Committee, if that is the case, officers will update Members on the additional 

representations report. Should that not be the case, officers would request that this application be 

delegated back to officers to overcome this drainage matter.   

 

Trees and Ecology 

 

5.41 Local Plan Policy EH3 (Biodiversity and geodiversity) states 'the biodiversity of West 

Oxfordshire shall be protected and enhanced to achieve an overall net gain in biodiversity and minimise 

impacts on geodiversity'. 

 

Page 66



5.42 Paragraph 180 of the NPPF sets out a clear hierarchy for proposals affecting biodiversity. The 

hierarchy is to firstly, avoid harm; secondly, where this is not possible, to mitigate any harm on-site; 

thirdly, as a last resort, to compensate for any residual harm. 

 

5.43 Most of the existing trees on the site are to be removed, although the submitted tree schedule 

indicates that all of the trees are defined as category C and of low overall quality. As such, the loss of 

these trees is acceptable.   

 

5.44 The impact to biodiversity, particularly that biodiversity net gain (BNG) was not proposed, 

formed refusal reason 4 of the previous application. In response, the applicant has submitted a 

biodiversity net gain calculation.  

 

5.45 The proposal would result in a loss of biodiversity, but this loss would be of low value habitats 

(part garden and part field), as evaluated in the Ecological Survey Report, and there is minimal 

ecologically meaningful opportunity within the proposed development site to create new habitat (other 

than hedgerows). The majority of the site would remain within residential garden use and it would 

therefore be difficult to ensure delivery and ongoing management of the required biodiversity units.  

 

5.46 The applicant has stated that they are willing to pay a sum of money to ensure 10% BNG can be 

achieved off site. The Councils biodiversity officer has commented on this and stated 'I am supportive of 

the approach advocated by the agent for the 10% biodiversity net gain to be secured as a financial 

payment towards habitat creation off-site. There are potential opportunities for this to be delivered 

within the local area, for example the Wychwood Project, which could be explored via a broker such as 

the Trust for Oxfordshire's Environment (TOE) in partnership with the council'. 

 

5.47 The proposed development is unlikely to result in the loss of protected species habitats. 

However, the development would lead to a reduction in biodiversity value at the site and full on-site 

mitigation is not achievable. Compensation for residual harm is therefore required. In this regard, 

although The Environment Act 2021 has now passed, secondary legislation is required for it to be 

implemented. Therefore, the 10% biodiversity net gain requirement set out in the Act is not yet law. 

Furthermore, Local Plan Policy EH3 and Paragraph 174 of the Framework, both seek a net gain in 

biodiversity without identifying a specific percentage. The applicant has stated that they are willing to 

agree off site biodiversity net gain of 10% through a financial contribution. This is above what is currently 

required by law and national or local policy.  

 

5.48 Overall, the proposals would meet the biodiversity hierarchy as set out in Paragraph 180 of the 

NPPF (subject to complying with the conditions and paying the sum required). As such, the proposal 

would not have an unacceptable effect on biodiversity and the proposal accords with Policy EH3 in that 

regard. Indeed, arguably, while off site, the scheme is likely to improve biodiversity value when taken 

holistically. Refusal reason 4 is overcome therefore.  

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.49 Residential amenity was not raised as a refusal reason previously and as assessed, the layout of 

the site is broadly the same as the previous scheme. Nonetheless, an assessment is still completed 

below.  

 

5.50 Adopted Local Plan Policy OS2 states that all development should be compatible with adjoining 

uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants.  In terms of the properties 

fronting onto Common Road (Nos 42-38), Plot 10 would be located to the rear of Nos 42 and 40.  The 

Page 67



dwelling would be off-set from the boundary by approximately 2m with the closest element comprising 

a single storey car port.  Given the proposed form of the development and generous depth of the 

gardens to Nos 42 and 40 (over 20m), it is not considered that the proposed development would have a 

significant adverse impact through overbearing or over-shadowing.  In addition, there are no facing 

windows between Plot 10 and Nos 42, 40 and 38.  

 

5.51 Concerns have been raised in relation to the new access road passing to the side of No 42 and 

its impact on their amenity through noise, vibration and air quality.  No 42 is however separated from 

the site with a single storey garage and appropriate boundary treatment could ensure that there would 

be no significant loss of amenity. 

 

5.52 The dwellings backing onto properties fronting onto Common Close would have gardens in 

excess of 11m and window to window distances of approximately 30m.  This exceeds the 22m industry 

standard required for facing window distances. Those new dwellings to the south of the site would 

predominantly overlook onto open land.   

 

5.53 Whilst the new pair of semi's adjoining No 46 would be sited slightly further forward in the plot, 

this is an overlap of just 4m and would be located to the north of No 46, as such loss of light and 

overshadowing is unlikely. Also, the side window of No 46 is noted. However, this is a small side 

window at second floor so is unlikely to allow significant views out of to detrimentally affect the privacy 

of the proposed dwellings. In addition, this window is north facing, so receives very little direct sunlight. 

The proposed dwelling (plot 1) is unlikely to adversely affect sunlight into this window.    

 

5.54 Taking all of this into consideration, officers are satisfied that the proposal will not detrimentally 

impinge on the residential amenities of the area in regards loss of privacy, or loss of light, overbearing or 

overshadowing impacts, noise, pollution (including light), odours or vibration. In addition sufficient 

private external amenity space is proposed for each property. 

 

S106 matters 

 

5.55 Policy OS5 of the Local Plan seeks to ensure that new development delivers or contributes 

towards the provision of essential supporting infrastructure and Policy T3 states that new development 

will be expected to contribute towards the provision of new and/or enhanced public transport, walking 

and cycling infrastructure to help encourage modal shift and promote healthier lifestyles.   

 

5.56 Policy H3 requires that 40% of the homes are provided as affordable housing. However, the 

proposed development does not propose sufficient floorspace that would engage Policy H3. 

Nonetheless, the applicant is proposing to provide two affordable homes and this will be secured via the 

S106.   

 

5.57 OCC seeks Household Waste Recycling Centre contribution of £940. 

 

5.58 OCC seeks Highway works contribution for the part funding of a shared use cycletrack along 

the A4095 of £ 10,000. 

 

5.59 OCC seeks Public transport services contribution for improved public transport in this area of 

£10,510. 

 

5.60 OCC seeks Public transport infrastructure (if not dealt with under S278/S38 agreement) for 

replacement poles, flags and timetable cases at the Common Close bus stops of £2,330. 

Page 68



 

5.61 OCC require the Applicant to enter into a S278 agreement and a S38 agreement to mitigate the 

impact of the development.  

 

5.62 Refusal reason 5 of the previous application was related to not entering into a legal agreement. 

The applicant has stated that they are willing to enter into a legal agreement to secure the above 

contributions.  

 

Conclusion (including previous refusal reasons) and Planning Balance 

 

5.63 The Council has recently undertaken a review (December 2021) and concludes it has a 5.3 year 

supply. Footnote 8 and Paragraph 11 of the NPPF are not therefore engaged; and the local plan policies 

which are most important for determining the application are not out-of-date and can be afforded full 

weight.  

 

5.64 Policy H2 permits new dwellings on undeveloped land adjoining the built up area where 

'convincing evidence is presented to demonstrate that it is necessary to meet identified housing needs, it 

is in accordance with the distribution of housing set out in Policy H1 and is in accordance with other 

policies in the plan in particular the general principles in Policy OS2'.  

 

5.65 The proposed development would add 9 dwellings (net) to West Oxfordshire Council housing 

stock. While WODC can demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing land, this is not a supply 

ceiling and officers are mindful of the Government's objective of significantly boosting the supply of 

homes (paragraph 60 of the NPPF). Furthermore, two affordable homes are provided. In light of this 

affordable housing provision and the addition of 9 homes (net), officers are satisfied that the proposal 

would accord with Local Plan Policy H2 insofar as it relates to meeting identified housing needs.  

 

5.66 The part of refusal reason 2 relating to mix of property types and sizes is not overcome as both 

the previously refused scheme and the current scheme propose the same mix of bedroom numbers 

(seven 3 bed homes and three 4 bed homes). As such, the conflict with Policy H4 remains. 

 

5.67 This application therefore overcomes the part of refusal reason 2 that relates to affordable 

housing (but not mix of housing) and the parts of refusal reason 1 that relate to the need for the homes 

(H2).  

 

5.68 However, H2 is clear in that proposals that accord with H2 also must accord with other policies 

in the Local Plan, in particular the general principles in Policy OS2. There are insufficient differences in 

terms of the general design, scale, form and layout that would warrant coming to a different conclusion 

than the previous refusal. As such, the development conflicts with Local Plan Policies OS2 and OS4 in 

terms of the design, scale, form and layout of the proposed development and Policy EH2 as it would fail 

to protect or enhance the local landscape and the setting of the village, and would fail to conserve the 

natural environment. The parts of refusal reason 1 relating to design, scale, form, layout and landscape 

therefore are not overcome.  

 

5.69 With regard to refusal reason 3 (SuDS solution in line with Local and National Standards and 

water quality standards). The LLFA have not raised water quality standards as a concern. As such, this 

element of refusal reason 3 is overcome. In addition, the site is in flood zone 1 (at the lowest risk of 

flooding) and while the LLFA are still objecting to the proposed drainage scheme, officers consider that 

this technical issue can be overcome. It may be that this is overcome prior to the application being 

heard at the April 19th Committee, if that is the case, officers will update Members on the additional 

Page 69



representations report. Should that not be the case, officers request that this application be delegated 

back to officers to overcome this drainage matter. Officers are confident that refusal reason 3 can be 

overcome.   

 

5.70 Moving to refusal reason 4 (biodiversity net gain (BNG)). There would be a loss of on-site 

biodiversity. However, subject to a financial sum being submitted and control through condition 

discharge submissions, a 10 % biodiversity net gain would be achieved. Officers acknowledge that this is 

above the minimum requirements. This overcomes refusal reason 4.  

 

5.71 The applicant has agreed to enter into a legal agreement to secure the provision of affordable 

housing and contributions to public transport highways improvement schemes and waste. This 

overcomes refusal reason 5.  

 

5.72 Application (ref. 20/02900/FUL) was refused in March 2021 for 10 homes on this site and this 

report has dealt with those reasons for refusal in detail. To summarise, refusal reasons 3, 4 and 5 

are/can be overcome and refusal reasons 1 and 2 are part overcome. As some conflict with Local Plan 

policies remain, a planning balance is required to weigh up the benefits of the scheme against this 

conflict.  

 

5.73 The proposed development would result in economic benefits to the local area during the 

construction phase and when the development is occupied by future residents by increasing the 

spending power in the area. This attracts moderate weight.  

 

5.74 There would be a loss of on-site biodiversity however, offsite 10 % biodiversity net gain would 

be achieved. Officers acknowledge that this is above the minimum requirements. However, this attracts 

modest weight commensurate with the scale of development.  

 

5.75 Financial contributions to local services/infrastructure through a Section 106 agreement is also a 

positive impact. This attracts moderate weight commensurate with the scale of development. 

 

5.76 The proposed development would add 9 (net) dwellings in a sustainable location to West 

Oxfordshire District housing stock. In light of the Government's objective of significantly boosting the 

supply of homes, this attracts significant weight.  

 

5.77 As of 04/04/2022, 119 applicants were registered on the Council's Homeseeker+ system to rent 

a home in North Leigh. In addition to these 119 applicants there are a further 2426 applicants on the 

wider district waiting list that could benefit from the development of affordable housing. It is clear that 

there is a need for affordable housing in North Leigh (and the wider district). While this application only 

proposes two affordable homes, in light of this identified need, this provision carries significant weight. 

 

5.78 The proposed development would cause some harm to the character and appearance of North 

Leigh and its landscape setting. When considering the scale of the development proposed, this harm is 

considered to be moderate. In addition, the proposed mix of homes is unsatisfactory as only 3 and 4 

bedroom homes are proposed. However, commensurate with the scale of development, this harm is 

considered to be modest.  

 

5.79 As identified, significant weight is attributed to the addition of 9 new homes in a sustainable 

location.  Significant weight is also applied to the provision of two much needed affordable homes. 

Positive weight is also attributed to 10% BNG, economic benefits from the construction phase and 

beyond, and contributions to public transport highways improvement schemes and waste.  

Page 70



 

5.80 Officers are satisfied, on balance, that the benefits of the scheme outlined overcome the 

moderate conflict when assessed against the Local Plan as a whole. The application is therefore 

recommended for approval.  

 

5.81 However there are some outstanding technical matters and officers request delegated authority 

to determine the application subject to no new technical matters being raised, a S106 being completed 

and to confirm the final conditions with the Chairman. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2 That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3 The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance of 

doubt as to what is permitted.  

 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 

without modification), no development permitted under Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, AA, B, C, D, 

E, and G shall be carried out other than that expressly authorised by this permission. 

 

REASON: Control is needed to protect the character and appearance of the development, the 

wider area and neighbour amenity. 

 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 

without modification) no additional windows/rooflights shall be constructed in the side elevation(s) 

of the building(s) hereby approved. 

 

REASON: To safeguard privacy in the adjacent properties. 

 

6 Before above ground building work commences, a schedule of materials (including samples) to be 

used in the elevations and roofs of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in the approved materials 

and shall be retained as such thereafter.  

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 

 

7 In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development, 

it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk 

Page 71



assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of Environment Agency's 

Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11, and where remediation is 

necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, to bring the site to a condition suitable for the 

intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property, and 

which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  

 

REASON: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of the amenity and to accord 

with West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and Section 15 of the NPPF.  

 

8 The dwellings hereby approved shall be designed and constructed to incorporate measures to 

ensure that as a minimum, they achieve the internal and external ambient noise levels contained in 

British Standard 8233:2014 Guidance for Sound Insulation and Noise Reduction for Buildings (or 

later versions).  

 

REASON: In the interests of residential amenity. 

 

9 Prior to work commencing on the site, an Environmental Management Plan shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Environmental Management Plan shall 

include the following details: 

 

2. Development contacts, roles and responsibilities  

3. Public communication strategy, including a complaints procedure. 

4. Dust suppression, mitigation and avoidance measures. 

5. Noise reduction measures, including use of acoustic screens and enclosures, the type of  

equipment to be used and their hours of operation. 

6. Use of fences and barriers to protect adjacent land, properties, footpaths and highways. 

7. Details of parking and traffic management measures. 

8. Avoidance of light spill and glare from any floodlighting and security lighting installed. 

9. Wheel washing facilities 

 

REASON: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of amenity and in the interests 

highway safety.  

 

10 The means of access between the land and the highway shall be constructed, laid out, surfaced, lit 

and drained in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority and all ancillary works therein specified shall be undertaken in 

accordance with the said specification before first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved.  

 

REASON: To ensure a safe and adequate access. 

 

11 No dwelling shall be occupied until the parking area and driveways have been surfaced and 

arrangements made for all surface water to be disposed of within the site curtilage in accordance 

with details that have been first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  

 

REASON: To ensure loose materials and surface water do not encroach onto the adjacent highway 

to the detriment of road safety. 

 

Page 72



12 The car parking areas (including where appropriate the marking out of parking spaces) shown on the 

approved plans shall be constructed before occupation of the development and thereafter retained 

and used for no other purpose.  

 

REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road safety. 

 

13 The carports hereby permitted shall be used for the parking of vehicles and ancillary domestic 

storage only and shall not be enclosed or used as additional or independent living accommodation 

without the prior approval, in writing, of the Local Planning Authority.  

 

REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road safety 

and to protect the amenity of nearby occupiers. 

 

14 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, covered cycle parking facilities 

shall be provided on the site in accordance with details which shall be firstly submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the covered cycle parking facilities 

shall be permanently retained and maintained for the parking of cycles in connection with the 

development.  

 

REASON In the interests of sustainability, to ensure a satisfactory form of development and to 

comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

15 No development shall commence unless and until a certificate confirming the agreement of an 'Off-

Site Biodiversity Net Gain' or 'Offset' Provider to deliver the required 0.5 biodiversity units has 

been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 

The written approval of the Council shall not be issued before the certificate has been issued by the 

Off-Site Biodiversity Net Gain Provider. The details of biodiversity enhancements shall be 

documented by the Offset Provider and issued to the Council for their records.  

 

REASON: To secure the delivery of off-site measures to ensure that a biodiversity net gain is 

achieved in accordance with Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011-2031 and 

paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

16 The development shall be completed in accordance with the recommendations in Section 6 of the 

Ecological Survey Report dated September 2020 prepared by Philip Irving (pages 10 to 12 inclusive), 

as submitted with the planning application. All the recommendations shall be implemented in full 

according to the specified timescales, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 

authority, and thereafter permanently retained and maintained.  

 

REASON: To ensure that biodiversity is protected and enhanced in accordance with The 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside 

Act 1981 as amended, Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework, Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the 

Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

17 Before the erection of any external walls of the new dwellings hereby approved, full details of the 

following biodiversity enhancements shall be shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 

local planning authority:  

 

Page 73



i. At least 1 no. integrated bat box integrated into each of the northern elevations of the 

properties on plots 1, 3, 4, 5 and 6 (i.e. 5 no. boxes in total);  

ii. Clusters of at least 3 no. integrated swift bricks into the northern elevations of the new 

buildings on plots 2, 7, 8, 9 and 10 (i.e. 15 no. swift bricks in total); and  

iii. Creation of gaps beneath fencing to provide 'hedgehog highways'.  

 

The details shall include technical drawings showing the types of features, their locations within the 

site and their positions on the elevations of the buildings, and a timetable for their provision. The 

approved details shall be implemented before the dwellings hereby approved are first occupied and 

thereafter permanently retained and maintained.  

 

REASON: To provide biodiversity enhancements and ensure permeability through the site for 

hedgehogs in accordance with paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework, Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and Section 40 of the Natural 

Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

18 A Hedgerow Planting and Management Plan (HPMP) shall be submitted to, and approved in writing 

by, the Local Planning Authority before occupation of the development hereby approved. The 

content of the HPMP shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following information:  

 

i. Full landscaping specification for the planting of new native and species-rich hedgerows 

(at least 6 no. native tree/shrub species) and enhancement of the existing hedgerow, 

including species composition and planting regime (e.g. double staggered rows);  

ii. Aims and objectives of the long-term management of existing and new hedgerows;  

iii. Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives;  

iv. Prescriptions for management actions;  

v. An annual work schedule (i.e. identifying timing of management operations); and  

vi. Details of how the HMP will be communicated to the occupiers of the development 

(e.g. as part of a 'homeowners information pack' or similar).  

 

The planting of the new hedgerows and the provision of the management plan to new residents shall 

be implemented in full in accordance with the approved details.   

 

REASON: To ensure that new hedgerows are planted and maintained appropriately in order to 

enhance their biodiversity value, for example for nesting birds, pollinating insects and hedgehogs, in 

accordance with paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the NPPF, Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031 and in order for the council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and 

Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 

INFORMATIVES :- 

 

Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head (approx 1 bar) and 

a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. The developer should 

take account of this minimum pressure in the design of the proposed development. 

 

Applicants are strongly encouraged to minimise energy demand, and take climate action, through fitting: 

 

 Electricity-fed heating systems and renewable energy, for example solar panels and heat pumps; 

thus avoiding fossil fuel based systems, for example gas boilers 

Page 74



 Wall, ceiling, roof, and floor insulation, and ventilation  

 High performing triple glazed windows and airtight frames 

 Energy and water efficient appliances and fittings 

 Water recycling measures 

 Sustainably and locally sourced materials  

 

For further guidance, please visit:  

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/make-a-planning-

application/sustainability-standards-checklist/  

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/how-to-achieve-net-zero-carbon-homes/ 

 

The Acoustics Ventilation and Overheating Residential Design Guide. Version 1.0 (Jan 2020) provides 

current additional valuable guidance. 

 

If any of the roads within the new development are to be offered up for adoption to the Local Highway 

Authority, a S38 Agreement will be required. For any private roads, a Private Road Agreement will be 

required between the developer and Oxfordshire County Council. For guidance and information on 

road adoptions please contact the County's Road Agreements Team on 01865 815700 or email 

Road.Agreements@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

Please note the Advance Payments Code (APC), Sections 219 -225 of the Highways Act, is in force in 

the county to ensure financial security from the developer to off-set the frontage owners' liability for 

private street works, typically in the form of a cash deposit or bond. Should a developer wish for a 

street or estate to remain private then to secure exemption from the APC procedure a 'Private Road 

Agreement' must be entered into with the County Council to protect the interests of prospective 

frontage owners. 

 

Several "offset" providers can take financial payments to deliver off-site biodiversity net gain projects in 

Oxfordshire, including the Trust for Oxfordshire's Environment (TOE) - 

https://www.trustforoxfordshire.org.uk/biodiversity-offsetting . The number of Biodiversity Units 

required to delivery biodiversity net gain for this permission is 0.5. 

 

Please note that this consent does not override the statutory protection afforded to species protected 

under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant legislation such as the Wild 

Mammals Act 1996 and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

 

For more information on hedgehog highways, please visit https://www.hedgehogstreet.org/help-

hedgehogs/link-your-garden/  

 

With regard to the condition for bat and bird boxes, it is recommended that at least 1no. bat box be 

integrated into the southern elevations of plots 1, 3, 4, 5 and 6; and clusters of at least 3no. swift bricks 

be integrated into the northern elevations of plots 2, 7, 8, 9 and 10. The applicant and their architect 

should note the advice of Swift Conservation with regard to the installation of the swift bricks available 

at https://www.swift-conservation.org/Nestboxes&Attraction.htm#Built%20in  

 

With regard to hedgerow planting, a mixture of the following native tree/shrub species is considered to 

be appropriate for this location: Dog rose, Elder, Field maple, Field rose, Guelder rose, Hawthorn, 

Hazel, Holly, Honeysuckle, Hornbeam, Oak, Spindle, Wild privet and Wych elm  

 

Page 75



 

Contact Officer: David Ditchett 

Telephone Number: 01993 861649 

Date: 5th April 2022 

Page 76



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 5th April 2022 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  21/01806/CLE Witney East REF 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (To allow the continued use as domestic garden) 

20 Cherry Tree Way Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr Richard Hikins 

 

 

Page 77

Agenda Item 5



DELGAT 
 

2.  21/02986/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 3 (schedule of materials), 5 (full surface water drainage plan) and 9 

(Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction) of planning permission 

21/01965/FUL 

Orchard Paddock Cottage 50 Abingdon Road Standlake 

Cordiem Ltd 

 

 

3.  21/03336/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 19 (creation and enhancements of habitats and 5 year maintenance 

plan) of planning permission 16/03627/OUT 

Land At Butts Piece Main Road Stanton Harcourt 

C/o Agent 

 

 

4.  21/03904/HHD Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Erection of a glasshouse and garden walls to create an enclosed Winter garden together with 

landscaping works 

Broadwell House Broadwell Lechlade 

Mr Peter Jackson 

 

 

5.  21/03905/LBC Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Exterior alterations to include the erection of a glasshouse and garden walls to create an 

enclosed Winter garden together with landscaping works 

Broadwell House Broadwell Lechlade 

Mr Peter Jackson 

 

 

6.  21/04003/LBC Witney North APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include alterations to internal ground floor layout, infill an 

external doorway on first floor, replacement of four windows and a door (part retrospective). 

Witney House 17 West End Witney 

Mr Nick Hough 

 

 

7.  21/04085/LBC Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

External alterations to install an electric charging unit to North East elevation 

Hill View Poffley End Hailey 

D Harris 

 

 

Page 78



DELGAT 
 

8.  22/00055/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of an electric charging unit to North East elevation 

Hill View Poffley End Hailey 

D Harris 

 

 

9.  21/04115/FUL Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of two detached dwellings, formation of vehicular access and provision of parking 

together with associated works. 

The Bungalow Blackditch Stanton Harcourt 

Mr David Bury 

 

 

10.  21/04122/CND Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 5 (Landscape Management Plan) of planning permission 15/00761/FUL 

and 19/01785/S73 

Land South Of Eynsham Nursery And Plant Centre Old Witney Road Eynsham 

Mr Chris Brotherton 

 

 

11.  22/00023/HHD Ducklington APP 

  

Small Garden studio (timber cladding and glass windows) 

The Hayloft Duttons Farm Barns Lew Road 

Mr Lorenc Hoxhallari 

 

 

12.  22/00072/FUL Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement and relocation of cricket nets 

Pavilion The Wickets Langford 

Mr Tom Stevens 

 

 

13.  22/00105/FUL Ducklington REF 

  

Conversion of existing barn into a dwelling house together with associated works. 

University Farmhouse Lew Bampton 

Mr And Mrs Varian 

 

 

Page 79



DELGAT 
 

14.  22/00114/HHD Witney South APP 

  

Render the house and conversion of the garage to utility room 

37 Curbridge Road Witney Oxfordshire 

Mrs Tanya Smith 

 

 

15.  22/00175/HHD Witney North APP 

  

Proposed single storey rear extension, replacement front porch 

44 Hailey Road Witney Oxfordshire 

Ms Iveta Wright 

 

 

16.  22/00183/LBC Witney East APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of a new lighting, speaker, and projection system to replace the existing lighting 

system 

Cogges Manor Farm Church Lane Witney 

Mr Michael Smith 

 

 

17.  22/00207/FUL Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Replacement dwelling 

The Bungalow Worsham Witney 

Mr and Mrs Willott 

 

 

18.  22/00229/S73 North Leigh APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 20/03541/FUL to allow changes to fenestration 

and the installation of a flue. 

Lyndhill East End North Leigh 

Mr Neil Wheeler 

 

 

19.  22/00232/FUL Carterton North East APP 

  

Demolition of Existing Car Showroom. Redevelopment of the site as an expansion of the 

existing service area, works to include the erection of a drive-through coffee shop and retail 

unit, six covered jet wash bays, associated parking, air/water and vac facilities and provision 

for future electric vehicle charging 

Brize Norton Service Station Norton Way Brize Norton 

Mr N Fraser 

 

 

Page 80



DELGAT 
 

20.  22/00253/HHD Carterton South APP 

  

Extension to form self-contained annexe (amended plans) 

25 Pampas Close Carterton Oxfordshire 

S M Cooper 

 

 

21.  22/00264/CLP Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Certificate of lawfulness (Erection of rear and side extensions and construction of an 

outbuilding) 

Keepers Cottage Manor Dairy Farm Shilton 

Mr Simon Key 

 

 

22.  22/00273/HHD Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Single storey extension and alterations internal and external. 

Chanonry Church Road Northmoor 

Mr Chris Isaac 

 

 

23.  22/00401/HHD Witney South APP 

  

Single storey extension to front elevation 

Whitegates The Leys Witney 

Mr S Townsend 

 

 

24.  22/00294/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 5 (access between the land and the highway) and 7 (surface water 

disposal) of planning permission 21/02089/HHD 

2 Eynsham Road Sutton Witney 

Mr John Woodward 

 

 

25.  22/00296/HHD Witney South APP 

  

Erection of single storey side extension to existing outbuilding. 

31 Highworth Place Witney Oxfordshire 

Aynsley 

 

 

26.  22/00332/HHD Carterton North East APP 

  

Conversion of attic to create additional living space 

1 Briary Way Carterton Oxfordshire 

Mr Ross Jarvis 

 

 

Page 81



DELGAT 
 

27.  22/00333/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

New window opening in the annexe building. 

The Forge Hollow Way Shilton 

Mr Andrew Pearson 

 

 

28.  22/00334/LBC Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

New window opening in the annexe building. 

The Forge Hollow Way Shilton 

Mr Andrew Pearson 

 

 

29.  22/00345/FUL Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing garage block to form up to 2 holiday lets/accommodation ancillary to 

Priory Barn and associated works. (Retrospective). 

Priory Barn Park Farm Lower End 

Mr Piers Holden 

 

 

30.  22/00535/CND Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Discharge of condition 5 (schedule of materials) of planning permission 21/02012/HHD 

Shuttles Cottage Chapel Road South Leigh 

Mr & Mrs N Baish 

 

 

31.  22/00536/CND Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (schedule of materials) of planning permission 21/03090/HHD 

Shuttles Cottage Chapel Road South Leigh 

Mr & Mrs N Baish 

 

 

 

Page 82



APPEAL DECISION(S) 

 

APPLICATION NO: 20/02358/FUL     

 

Chilli Pepper, Broadwell, Lechlade, Oxfordshire GL7 3QS  
The development proposed is the change of use from Restaurant/Bar (A3) to Residential 

(C3). 

 

DISMISSED 

____________________________________________________________________

______ 

 

APPLICATION NO: 21/01860/OUT   

 

31 Manor Road, Ducklington, Oxfordshire OX29 7YD  

The development proposed is a two bed dwelling. 

 

DISMISSED 

 

____________________________________________________________________

______ 

 

APPLICATION NO:  21/02152/PN56 

 

Fir Tree Farm, Main Road, Barnard Gate, Witney OX29 6XE 

The development proposed is the change of use from agricultural barn to dwelling. 

 

DISMISSED 

 

____________________________________________________________________

______ 

 

APPLICATION NO:  20/02884/FUL 

 

Magdalen Farm, Abingdon Road, Standlake, Oxfordshire OX29 7RN 
The development proposed is described as the ‘Demolition of two redundant farm 

buildings: Change of use of the site of application from Agricultural to Residential use: the 

erection of two number detached houses and a detached garage.’ 

 

DISMISSED 

 

____________________________________________________________________

______ 

 

APPLICATION NO: 20/03006/LBC  

 

Plough Inn, Black Bourton Road, Clanfield OX18 2RB 

The works proposed are described as ‘External alterations to install replacement externally 

illuminated hanging sign and an internally illuminated menu case together with a non-

illuminated name sign both affixed to the main entrance. 

Page 83



 

DISMISSED 

 

____________________________________________________________________

______ 

 

 

APPLICATION NO: 20/03005/ADV  

 

Plough Inn, Black Bourton Road, Clanfield OX18 2RB 

The advertisement proposed is Sign A - 1 x new fret cut double sided pictorial sign with 

new bracket and linolites. Sign B - 1 x new double legged post sign with trough light 

illumination. Sign C - 1 x new small fret cut panel with painted detail. Sign D - 1 x new 

internally illuminated menu case. 

 
The appeals are PART ALLOWED, PART DISMISSED 

Page 84


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Applications for Development
	5 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions
	APPEAL DECISION(S)


